s+ Helendale Community Services District Regular Board Meeting

§ fj%' 99‘, 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, CA 92342
=7 Pl
S q
HELENDALE
Thursday, October 15, 2020 at 6:30 PM

SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY
Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Gavin Newsom in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and in an effort to prevent the spread of the virus, Helendale CSD will hold its board
meeting via teleconference. The Helendale CSD Board of Directors will meet in person at the District Office
located at 26540 Vista Rd. Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342. This meeting is open to the public via virtual interface
and can be accessed by clicking on the link below.
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6904676146957413131
(Dial-in instructions will be provided after registering at the link above)

Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance
1. Approval of Agenda

2. Public Participation

Anyone wishing to address any matter pertaining to District business listed on the agenda or not, may do so at
this time. However, the Board of Directors may not take action on items that are not on the agenda. The public
comment period may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Any member wishing to make comments may
do so by filling out the speaker’s card at the following link: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HKGNLLS.

We request that all speaker’s cards are filled out by 6:25 pm.

3. Consent ltems
a. Approval of Minutes: October 1, 2020, Regular Board Meeting
b. Directors Compensation and Expenses
c. Bills paid report
d. August Financials

4. Reports
a. Directors’ Reports
b. General Manager’s Report

Regular Business:
5. Discussion Only Regarding COVID-19 Pandemic Update

6. Discussion Only Regarding Mandatory Testing Requirements for PFAS
7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Parking Lot Lighting at the Community Center

8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Cost of Park Elements for Grant Application

Other Business
9. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)


https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5277226314128932110
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HKGNLL8

Closed Session
10. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Government Code Section 54956.8)
Property: APN’s: 0467-021-33; 0466-181-25; 0466-618-26
District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
Negotiating Parties: US Materials
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

11. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Government Code Section 54956.8)
Property: APN’s: 0467-121-28, 0467-121-22
District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
Negotiating Party: Carl Ross Living Trust
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

11A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code Section 54956.8
Property: Various
District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox
Negotiating Parties: Robert Boytor
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

12. Report of Closed Session ltems
13. Adjournment

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to participate in the above agendized
public meeting should be directed to the District's General Manager's office at (760) 951-0006 at least 24 hours
prior to said meeting. The regular session of the Board meeting will be recorded. Recordings of the Board meetings
are kept for the Clerk of the Board's convenience. These recordings are not the official minutes of the Board
meetings.



L2 Helendale Community Services District
Date: October 15, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3
Consent Items

CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of October 1, 2020
b. Bills Paid Report
c. Directors Expenses
d. August Financials



&;‘LL

) R

I Helendale Community Services District

Date: October 15, 2020

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Cheryl Vermette

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3a
Minutes from Board meetings 10/1/2020




SERV/

P e

l)-}'

COMMUN,
—&§
12141810

Minutes of the Helendale Community Services District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
October 1, 2020 at 6:30 PM
26540 Vista Road, Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342

]

Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Gavin Newsom in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic and in an effort to prevent the spread of the virus, Public
Participation in Helendale CSD’s Board Meeting was held via teleconference.

Board Members Roll Call:
Present: President Ron Clark; Vice President Tim Smith; Secretary Sandy Haas; Director Craig
Schneider; Director Henry Spiller

Staff Members Present: Consultants:
Kimberly Cox, General Manager Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel (via
Cheryl Vermette, Program Coordinator teleconference)

Members of the Public:
There were two members of the public present via the teleconference link.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by President Ron Clark, after which the Pledge of
Allegiance was recited.

1. Approval of Agenda
Action: A motion was made by Director Schneider to approve the agenda as amended. The
motion was seconded by Director Haas.
Vote: Motion carried by the following vote: 5 Yes; 0 No

2. Public Participation
None

3. Consent ltems
a. Approval of Minutes: September 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting & September 19"
Special Board Meeting
b. Directors Compensation and Expenses
c. Bills Paid Report
Action: A motion was made by Vice-President Smith to approve the consent items as
presented. The motion was seconded by Director Spiller.
Vote: Motion carried by the following vote: 5 Yes; 0 No

4. Reports
a. Directors’ Reports
Director Schneider reported that he staffed the booth at the Farmers Market and talked
to residents about the park grant.
Director Spiller reported that he too staffed the booth at the Farmers Market and talked
to residents about the park grant.

b. General Manager's Report



General Manager Cox reported that there will be construction on National Trails Highway
beginning on 9/30 and going through 10/8 from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm/ The railroad is doing
construction on the bridge. There will be no hard road closures and there will be flaggers
to allow for traffic flow.

She also reported that the final public input meeting for the park grant will be held on
10/19 at 5:00 pm. This will be agendized as a Special Board meeting to allow full
participation by the Board. A resolution for the grant application will be on the Board
agenda on 11/5. The input has been very productive, and the park rendering should be
ready in a few weeks.

Water Operations Manager Craig Carlson gave the water report. Staff has been working
on the meter replacement program and are ahead of schedule with the Strategic Partners
Grant. Staff repaired two leaks at Fairway Courts, a broken main line on Peninsula,
assisted Wastewater on the installation of a new sewer lateral on Peninsula and installed
a new 2" meter at North Beach. We also completed the safety equipment inventory and
will be ordering new safety supplies. Staff installed the mattress lift at the thrift store and
converted the electric to battery powered hydraulic. All monthly inspections have been
completed for September. Carlson showed several photos of the broken main line on
Peninsula.

Regular Business
. Discussion Only Regarding COVID-19 Pandemic Update

Discussion: The District continues to monitor the information released by the state. Staff
continues to monitor cash flow. There are $29,677 in back payments and 36 out of the 139
past due accounts paid this week. The local School District has applied for a waiver to begin
K-6" in class instruction possibly by 10/26. Guidance has been issued for trick-or-treating
and playgrounds. Every Tuesday the State releases the County standings.

Motion: There was no motion on this item.

. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Community Center Allocation/Reallocation of
Space

Discussion: Unit D is currently vacant, and we are using it for the Farmers Market vendors
for the time being. Some repairs are necessary including painting, drywall repair and concrete
repair. Climate control is limited; the unit has three swap coolers that work marginally in that
large of a space and one natural gas space heater that is not adequate. The intention of this
discussion is to stimulate a brainstorming session on how the Board wishes to reallocate that
space for public use. Staff's role is to facilitate the process and perform research on various
options as requested by the Board. Staff requested concurrence from the Board on options
for evaluation. The Board reviewed drawings of the building and discussed different options.
The consensus of the Board that the main priorities included painting the walls and repairing
the concrete, not putting in carpet for now, and addressing the heating and air conditioning.
They also wanted to see that the restrooms were addressed ASAP. The Board also
discussed changing the design of Unit C and D opening the space into one larger room with
accordion doors between the two units to be able to split the space when needed and creating
a permanent Board room.

Motion: There was no motion on this item. The Board directed Staff to paint the walls, repair
floors and investigate options for heating and cooling the space.

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Water Rights and Water Production
Discussion: The District has been forward thinking in acquiring water rights and currently
has sufficient water rights. The excess water rights are leased out annually. A judge ramped



down use in the last Water Year from 60% to 55%. Staff received a call regarding a potential
subdivision of approximately 700 homes. The District would currently have enough water to
service that new demand.

Conservation. The District has repaired old water lines saving over 600-acre feet per year.
The community has done a tremendous job on conservation and has reduced approximately
178-acre feet from 2011 to current.

General Manager Cox presented a chart showing Base annual production, free production
allowance and water pumped from Water Year 2006/2007 through Water Year 2019/2020.
The water supply fee was implemented in 2009 costing $5,000 per new home, which
purchases 1-acre foot (AF) of water — the ramped down amount (55% of 1 AF) is 239 Hundred
Cubic Feet (HCF). The average customer usage is 180 HCF per year. Since that time 28
homes have been constructed and $140,000 in fees have been collected. In 2011, the District
purchased 500 AF of storage water from MWA at $386/AF. The current MWA rate is not to
exceed $662. On face value increase in inventory is $276 but the final lease price is MWA's
final rate and market conditions. The estimate is that market will be 10% below the MWA
rate. Staff requested to liquidate storage water.

Motion: Director Spiller made the motion to approve the use of Water from MWA Inventory
Claim Program. Vice President Smith seconded the motion.

Vote: The was approved by the following 5 Yes — 0 No. Roll call vote: President Clark — Yes;
Vice President Smith — Yes; Secretary Haas — Yes; Director Schneider — Yes; Director Spiller
—Yes

Other Business
8. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)

Director Schneider requested to review the District's Water Rights

President Clark called for a brief recess at 7:30 pm after which closed session began.

Closed Session

President Clark called Closed Session to order at 7:35 pm.

Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Government Code Section 54956.8)
Property: APN'’s: 0467-021-33; 0466-181-25; 0466-618-26

District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

Negotiating Parties: US Materials

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

10. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Government Code Section 54956.8)

Property: APN’s: 0467-121-28, 0467-121-22
District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
Negotiating Party: Carl Ross Living Trust

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

11. Conference with Real Property Negotiators

Government Code Section 54956.8

Property: Various

District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox

Negotiating Parties: Robert Boytor

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment



12. Report of Closed Session Items
Closed Session adjourned at 7:55 pm at which time President Clark called to order the Open Session.
Legal Counsel Kennedy announced there was no action resulting from any of the closed session items.

13. Adjournment
Action: President Ron Clark adjourned the meeting at 7:56 pm

Submitted by: Approved By:

Ron Clark, President Sandy Haas, Secretary

The Board actions represent decisions of the Helendale Community Services District Board of
Directors. A digital voice recording and copy of the PowerPoint presentation are available upon
request at the Helendale CSD office.



» g

“AE Helendale Community Services District

Date: October 15, 2020

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Sharon Kreinop

SUBIJECT: Agenda item #3b
Bills Paid Report




1 Helendale Community Services District
Date: October 15, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Cheryl Vermette

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3c
Presentation of Directors’ Expenses

STAFF REPORT:

Attached for the Board’s consideration is a spreadsheet that outlines Director’s expenses paid
for the current pay period.



v b WM

U wWw N

Name:
Date
10/1/2020
10/2/2020
10/6/2020
10/7/2020
10/8/2020

Director's Expenses
Pay Period Ending October 11, 2020

Sandy Haas

Activity

Regular Board Meeting

Meeting with General Manager
Meeting with General Manager
Meeting with General Manager
Meeting with Program Coordinator

Miles
Meals
Lodging
Other

Total this Pay Period

Name:
Date
9/29/2020
10/1/2020

Tim Smith

Activity

Meeting with General Manager
Regular Board Meeting

Miles
Meals
Lodging
Other

Total this Pay Period

Name:
Date
9/2/2020
9/3/2020
9/6/2020
9/7/2020
9/19/2020

Ron Clark

Activity

Meeting with General Manager
Regular Board Meeting
Meeting with General Manager
Regular Board Meeting

Special Park Planning Meeting

Miles
Meals
Lodging
Other

Total this Pay Period

Rate
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$687.50

Rate
$137.50
$137.50

$0.00

$0.00

$275.00

Rate
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50

$0.00

$0.00

$687.50



B W N e

Name:
Date
9/29/2020
9/30/2020
10/1/2020
10/7/2020

Craig Schneider

Activity

Meeting with General Manager

Park Planning Table at Farmers Market
Regular Board Meeting

Park Planning Table at Farmers Market

Miles
Meals
Lodging
Other

Total this Pay Period

Rate
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50
$137.50

$0.00

$0.00

$550.00



2 Helendale Community Services District
Date: October 15, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3d
August Financials

STAFF REPORT:

Attached for the Board’s consideration is the financial report for August.



Helendale CSD
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Water

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020  YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD

1 Operating Revenues

2 Meter Charges $ 134,106 $ 265,115 $ 1,578,873 17% $ 242,205

3 Water Sales 107,028 207,308 862,015 24% 190,905

4 Standby Charges - - 24,400 0% 171

5 Other Operating Revenue 14,329 18,383 86,232 21% 13,522

6 Total Operating Revenues 255,464 490,806 2,551,520 19% 446,803

7 Non-Operating Revenues

8 Grant Revenue - 16,000 37,500 43% =

9 Miscellaneous Income (Expense) - - 1,000 0% -
10 Total Non-Operating Revenues - 16,000 38,500 42% -
11 Total Revenues 255,464 506,806 2,590,020 20% 446,803
12 Expenses
13 Salaries & Benefits
14 Salaries 38,937 56,243 330,774 17% 60,730
15 Benefits 15,446 26,320 123,793 21% 40,490
16 Total Salaries & Benefits 54,384 82,564 454,567 18% 101,220
17 Transmission & Distribution
18 Contractual Services 735 19,502 39,050 50% 8,233
19 Power 18,247 32,450 124,106 26% 22,806
20 Operations & Maintenance 4,974 10,684 131,682 8% 19,714
21 Rent/Lease Expense 800 2,230 10,860 21% 1,600
22 Permits & Fees - 2,032 25,600 8% 420
23 Total T&D 24,757 66,898 331,298 20% 52,773
24 General & Administrative
25 Utilities 502 881 5,436 16% 912
26 Office & Other Expenses 278 528 3,015 18% 90
27 Admin Allocation 46,517 93,035 558,207 17% 81,918
28 Total G&A 47,298 94,443 566,658 17% 82,921
29 Debt Service 9,132 158,579 388,734 41% 159,145
30 Total Expenses 135,570 402,484 1,741,257 23% 396,058
31 Net Income (Loss) Before Capital 119,894 104,322 848,763 12% 50,745
32 Capital Expenses (2,430) (2,430) (2,023,667) 0% -
33 Net Income (Loss) After Capital $ 117,464 $ 101,892 $ (1,174,904) $ 50,745




Helendale CSD
Financial Statement Analysis
For the Month Ended August 31, 2020 - 16% of Fiscal Year

Fund 01-Water Revenues and Expenses

Line 2 Meter Charges: Meter Charges are the fixed monthly charge for water service. Year to date (YTD) meter charges is
trending on budget.

Line 3 Water Sales: Water Sales reflects water consumption and is trending above budget due to higher consumption on
the summer months.

Line 4 Standby Charges: Standby Charges includes special assessment standby charges for the current & prior years, and
delinquent standby penalties. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of assessment receipts and
unbudgeted receipts of delinquent assessments.

Line 5 Other Operating Revenue: Other Operating Revenue includes permit & inspection charges, connection fees, meter
installation fees, other fees/charges & mechanic service reimbursements. Connection & meter installation fees are

budgeted conservatively due to the unexpected nature of these fees. YTD is at 21% due to connections fees in August.

Line 8 Grant Revenue: YTD balance consists of a $16.0K award for MWA Meter Replacement Program. Budget for this
account consists of the remaining $37.5K grant from the Bureau of Reclamation for installation of AMI smart meters.

Line 9 Miscellaneous Income (Expense): Miscellaneous Income includes gain/loss on sale of assets, the Enel X Demand
Response Program & other miscellaneous income.

Line 14 Salaries: Amounts for water department employees and share of mechanic’s payroll. YTD is trending on budget.
Line 15 Benefits: Benefits includes health insurance, CalPERS retirement, worker’s compensation insurance, payroll
taxes, and employee education and trainings. YTD is trending slightly higher than budgeted due to the annual worker’s
compensation renewal which came in higher than budgeted for due to the reclassification of certain employees

Line 16 Total Salaries & Benefits: Salaries & Benefits include all salaries & benefits paid.

Line 18 Contractual Services: Contract Services includes lab testing, engineering, GIS support & other contract services.
YTD is trending at 50% due to invoices for annual GIS Software $4.8K and $9.1K to Tyler Technologies for meter data sync.

Line 19 Power: This account includes electricity used for transmission & distribution. YTD is trending at 26% due to
increased demand.

Line 20 Operations & Maintenance: This line includes operations & maintenance expense, vehicle maintenance & vehicle
fuel. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of work performed.

Line 21 Rent/Lease Expense: Rent/Lease Expense includes rental costs for the water shop & BLM tank sites.

Line 22 Permits & Fees: Includes all water permits, miscellaneous fees, and Watermaster fees. Year to Date (YTD) can
trend over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 25 Utilities (G&A): Utilities includes gas & telephone expenses. YTD is trending on budget at 16%.
Line 26 Office & Other Expenses: Office & Other includes mileage/travel reimbursements, office supplies, water

conservation program, and dues & subscriptions. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of
payments.



Line 27 Administrative Allocation: This is the monthly distribution of the budgeted Fund 10 (Administration fund)
expenses to the enterprise funds.

Line 29 Debt Service: Debt Service includes Interest & Principal payments on outstanding debt.

Line 32 Capital Expenses: YTD balance in Capital expenses includes the following:
e 524K - Well Exploration Test Holes



1 Operating Revenues

2 Sewer Charges

3 Standby Charges

4 Other Fees & Charges

5 Other Income/(Expense)

6 Total Revenues

7 Expenses

8 Salaries & Benefits

9 Salaries
10 Benefits
11 Total Salaries & Benefits
12 Sewer Operations
13 Contractual Services
14 Power
15 Operations & Maintenance
16 Permits & Fees
17 Total Sewer Operations
18 General & Administrative
19 Utilities
20 Office & Other Expenses
21 Admin Allocation
22 Total G&A
23 Debt Service
24 Total Expenses

25 Net Income (Loss) Before Capital
26 Capital Expenses
27 Net Income (Loss) After Capital

Helendale CSD
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Sewer

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020 YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD
$ 106,799 $ 213,506 $ 1,279,029 17% $ 213,307
- - 21,350 0% 1,003
4,726 5,938 15,438 38% 2,608
. s . 0% s
111,524 219,444 1,315,817 17% 216,919
31,099 45,184 258,397 17% 34,167
14,217 23,099 97,812 24% 34,182
45,316 68,283 356,209 19% 68,349
660 9,173 77,400 12% 7,935
6,739 14,431 79,750 18% 17,758
2,789 5,975 63,363 9% 8,435
2,966 3,976 27,617 14% 4,084
13,154 33,554 248,130 14% 38,211
376 739 5,616 13% 677
564 2,868 7,393 39% 625
45,587 91,174 547,043 17% 80,280
46,527 94,781 560,052 17% 81,582
- - 75,042 0% -
104,997 196,618 1,239,433 16% 188,142
6,528 22,826 76,384 30% 28,777
(40,608) (69,814) (1,367,000) 5% -
$ (34,080) $ (46,988) $  (1,290,616) 4% $ 28,777




Fund 02 - Sewer Revenues and Expenses
Line 2 Sewer Charges: YTD is trending on budget at 17%.

Line 3 Standby Charges: Standby Charges includes special assessment standby charges for the current & prior years, and
delinquent standby penalties. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of assessment receipts and
unbudgeted receipts of delinquent assessments.

Line 4 Other Fees & Charges: Other Fees & Charges includes permit & inspection charges, connection Fees, other
fees/charges & delinquent charges on fees. Connection & permit fees are budgeted conservatively due to the unexpected
nature of these fees. YTD is at 38% due to connection fees received in August.

Line 5 Other Income/(Expense): Other Income includes gain/loss on sale of assets & other misc. income.

Line 9 Salaries: Salaries for sewer employees, trending slightly under budget. Salaries for the mechanic are budgeted and
accounted for in Line 15, Vehicle Maintenance. YTD is trending on budget at 17%.

Line 10 Benefits: Benefits include employee insurance, PERS retirement, workers compensation, payroll taxes, and
education and training. YTD is at 24% due to the annual worker's compensation renewal which came in higher than
budgeted for due to the reclassification of certain employees

Line 13 Contractual Services: Contract Services include lab testing, engineering, GIS support & other contractual services.
Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 14 Power: YTD is trending near target at 18%.

Line 15 Operations & Maintenance: This account includes compost disposal, vehicle maintenance, vehicle fuel, uniforms
& small tools. This category will trend under or over budget depending on timing of purchases and work performed.

Line 16 Permits and Fees: This accounts for all annual permitting and fees paid to the state. Year to Date (YTD) can trend
over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 19 Utilities (G&A): Utilities includes gas & telephone expenses. YTD is trending slightly under budget.

Line 20 Office & Other Expenses: Office & Other includes mileage/travel reimbursements, office supplies, water
conservation program, and dues & subscriptions. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of
payments.

Line 21 Administrative Allocation: This is the monthly distribution of the budgeted Fund 10 (Administration fund)
expenses to the enterprise funds.

Line 23 Debt Service: Debt Service includes interest & principal payments on outstanding debt. Payments are made twice
a yearin June & December.

Line 26 Capital Expenses: YTD balance in capital expense includes the following:
e $51.3K Secondary Irrigation Pump Project
e $18.6K Manhole Cutter Purchase



Helendale CSD

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Recycling Center

1 Operating Revenues

2 Retail Sales

3 Donations

4 Board Discretionary Revenue

S Total Revenues

6 Expenses
7 Salaries & Benefits
8 Salaries
9 Benefits
10 Total Salaries & Benefits

11 Recycling Center Operations
12 Contractual Services
13 Operations & Maintenance

14 Total Recycling Center Operations
15 General & Administrative

16 Utilities
17 Office & Other Expenses

18 Total G&A
19 Total Expenses
20 Net Income (Loss) Before Capital

21 Capital Expenses
22 Net Income (Loss) After Capital

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020 YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD
$ 257791 $ 50,386 $ 264,000 19% $ 49,983
_ , . 0% y
- - (84,380) 0% -
25,791 50,386 179,620 28% 49,983
11,421 16,154 136,326 12% 17,361
2,316 4,794 16,070 30% 3527
13,737 20,949 152,396 14% 22,888
) . 4,300 0% 2
1,253 2,016 11,300 18% 1,801
1,253 2,016 15,600 13% 1,801
825 1,539 8,124 19% 2,401
321 404 3,500 12% 1,905
1,146 1,943 11,624 17% 4,305
16,136 24,907 179,620 14% 28,994
9,655 25,479 - 20,988
- - - 0% 10,736
$ 9,655 $ 25479 $ - 0% $ 10,252




03-Recycling Center Revenues and Expenses
Line 2 Retail Sales: YTD is trending slight above budget at 19%.
Line 3 Donations: Donations is not budgeted due to the unexpected nature of these revenues.

Line 4 Board Discretionary Revenue: This line shows the transfer of net cash from the Recycling Center to the Parks &
Recreation Fund. This transfer is done at year end so will be zero throughout the fiscal year until June 2021.

Line 8 Salaries: Salaries for part-time recycling center employees. YTD is trending below budget at 12%.

Line 9 Benefits: Benefits include employee insurance, workers compensation, payroll taxes, and education and training.
YTD is at 30% due to the annual worker's compensation renewal which came in higher than budgeted for due to the
reclassification of certain employees

Line 10 Total Salaries & Benefits: Salaries & benefits include all salaries paid, health insurance, worker’s compensation
insurance, payroll taxes, and employee education and training.

Line 12 Contractual Services: Contract Services includes software support & other contract services. Year to Date (YTD)
can trend over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 13 Operations & Maintenance: Operations & Maintenance includes vehicle maintenance, vehicle fuel, operating
supplies & uniforms. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of work performed and payments.

Line 16 Utilities (G&A): Utilities includes electric & telephone expenses. YTD is trending slightly over budget.

Line 17 Office & Other Expenses: This line includes advertising, bank charges and other miscellaneous expenses. Office &
other includes advertising, bank charges, & other misc. expenses. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to
timing of payments.

Line 20 Net Income: Net income in the Recycling Center is moved to Fund 05 Parks & Recreation at year end through
Board Discretionary Revenue.



Helendale CSD
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Property Rental

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020 YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD
1 Operating Revenues
2 Property Rental Revenues $ 10,603 $ 21,427 $ 128,280 17% $ 20,418
3 Other Income - - 200 0% -
4 Board Discretionary Revenue - - - 0% -
5 Total Revenues 10,603 21,427 128,480 17 % 20,418
6 Expenses
7 Contractual Services - - 5,000 0% 200
8 Utilities 392 754 10,111 7% 1,149
9 Operations & Maintenance 173 3,488 6.000 58% 586
10 Debt Service - - 85,882 0% -
11 Total Expenses 565 4,242 106,993 4% 1,935

12 Net Income (Loss) $ 10,038 $ 17,185 § 21,487 80% $ 18,483




04-Property Rental Revenues and Expenses

Line 2 Property Rental Revenues: Property Rentals includes revenues from 15302 Smithson & 15425 Wild Road. YTD is
trending on budget 17%.

Line 3 Other Income: Other Income includes delinquent penalties & other misc. income. Due to the unexpected nature of
these revenues, these accounts are not budgeted.

Line 4 Board Discretionary Revenue: This line shows the transfer of net cash from the Property Rental Fund to Parks &
Rec. This entry will be done at year-end for the audit.

Line 7 Contractual Services: Contract services includes contractor/handyman expense for installation of appliances,
drywall repair, roofing or plumbing repairs. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 8 Utilities: Utilities includes Electric & Gas expense for the rental properties.

Line 9 Operations & Maintenance: O&M includes maintenance & other costs relating to the rental properties. Year to
Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of payments. YTD is at 58% due to $3K in A/C at the Smithson

property in July

Line 10 Debt Service: Debt Service includes interest & principal payments on outstanding debt, paid in December and
June.

Line 12 Net Income: Net income in the Property Rental fund is moved to Fund 05 through Board discretionary revenue at
year end at year-end for the audit.



1 Operating Revenues

Program Fees

Property Taxes

Donations & Sponsorships
Rental Income

Developer Impact Fees
Grants

Interfund Transfer Out/(In)

9 Board Discretionary Revenue

10 Total Revenues

00~ Oy B oWN

11 Expenses

12 Salaries & Benefits

13 Salaries

14 Benefits

15 Total Salaries & Benefits
16 Program Expense

17 Contractual Services

18 Utilities

19 Operations & Maintenance
20 Permits & Fees

21 Grant Expense

22 Other Expenses

23 Debt Service

24 Total Expenses
25 Net Income (Loss) Before Capital

26 Capital Expenses
27 Net Income (Loss) After Capital

Helendale CSD
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Parks & Recreation

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020 YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD
$ 543 % 1,199 27,800 4% 8,956
1,552 3,104 17,160 18% 2,953
36 1,664 10,790 15% 5,145
2,413 5213 40,100 13% 6,614
1,720 1,720 - 0% -
, B, - 0% N
(3,508) (7,017) (42,100) 17% -
17,371 35,875 417,004 9% 31,217
20,127 41,759 470,754 9% 54,885
10,594 15,484 87,564 18% 967
5,802 8,325 43,903 19% 1,594
16,397 23,809 131,467 18% 2,561
1,670 5,135 71,439 7% 3,710
- 185 12,560 1% 2,484
2,854 5,580 56,301 10% 7,024
1,116 7,310 24,216 30% 4,592
- - 5,338 0% -
- - = 0% ‘
406 303 3,105 10% 204
9,132 9,132 40,679 22% 9,698
31,574 51,454 345,106 15% 32,273
(11,447) (9,696) 125,648 -8% 22,612
- - (135,000) 0% -
$ (11,447) $ (9,696) $ (9,352) 104% $ 22,612




05-Parks & Recreation Revenues and Expenses

Line 2 Program Fees: Program Fees include recreation program fees, basketball league fees, youth soccer league fees &
farmers market revenue. YTD trending under budget due to lower than planned activity due to Covid-19 restrictions.

Line 3 Property Taxes: Property taxes accounts for the transfer of property taxes for streetlight utility expenses. YTD is
trending near budget at 18%.

Line 4 Donations & Sponsorships: This account includes concert in park sponsorships, event sponsorship and other
donations/sponsorships.

Line 5 Rental Income: Rental Income Includes rent/lease income from the water shop, storage for the recycling center,
unit C room rental, unit D church rental, and unit D gymnastics.

Line 6 Developer Impact Fees: Developer Impact Fees are not budgeted due to the unexpected nature of these revenues.

Line 7 Grant Revenue: The District anticipates $130K in grant revenues from the Land and Wildlife Conservation Fund for
construction of park facilities. This amount will be received in August or September 2020.

Line 8 Interfund Transfer Out/(In): This line shows the transfer of cash balance from the Recycling Center & Property
Rental to the Parks & Rec Fund. This entry will be done at year-end in June 2021 when it is known exactly how much net
income is available to transfer.

Line 9 Board Discretionary: Board Discretionary Revenue in February includes the following:
e Radio Tower Site Rent — $11,308
e Property Taxes - $6
e Solid Waste Franchise Fees - $7,609
e Transfer Property Tax Revenue for Street Light Utilities —$(1,503)

Line 13 Salaries: Amounts for full & part-time parks department employees. YTD is trending near budget at 29%.
Line 14 Benefits: Benefits includes health insurance, CalPERS retirement, worker's compensation insurance, payroll taxes,
and employee education and trainings. YTD is at 19% due to the annual worker’s compensation renewal which came in

higher than budgeted for due to the reclassification of certain employees

Line 16 Program Expense: Program expense includes supplies/expenses for the youth soccer league, park, community
center, farmers market, & other programs. Year to Date (YTD) can trend over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 18 Utilities: Utilities includes gas, electric for park/community center, telephone & electricity for street lighting.
Line 19 Operations & Maintenance: O&M includes maintenance costs for the park & community center, vehicle
maintenance, small tools, vehicle fuel and building repair. YTD is at 30% due to timing of insurance renewals and annual

software support.

Line 20 Permits & fees: This account includes permit/inspection fees & San Bernardino county fees. Year to Date (YTD)
can trend over/under budget due to timing of payments.

Line 22 Other Expenses: Other expenses includes Uniforms, Printing Costs, Dues & Subscriptions & Bank Charges.

Line 23 Debt Service: Debt Service includes interest & principal payments on outstanding debt. Debt Service payments
are made quarterly in June, September, December & March.



Helendale CSD

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Solid Waste Disposal

1 Operating Revenues

2 Charges for Services

3 Assessments & Fees

4 Other Charges

5 Board Discretionary Revenue

6 Total Revenues

7 Expenses
8 Salaries & Benefits
9 Salaries
10 Benefits
11 Total Salaries & Benefits

12 Contractual Services

13 Disposal Fees

14 Operations & Maintenance
15 Other Operating Expenses
16 Admin Allocation

17 Total Expenses
18 Net Income (Loss)

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020  YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD

$ 45613 § 88424 § 582,089 15% $ 82,263
372 713 235,847 0% 342
471 994 11,000 9% 3,765

2 . . 0% a
46,457 90,132 828,937 11% 86,369
11,443 16,018 79,269 20% 9,568
4,960 7,557 39,654 19% 6,585
16,403 23,575 118,923 20% 16,153
90,750 90,750 540,117 17% 41,473
14,355 15,466 141,956 11% 16,118
90 441 4,215 10% 550
825 1,351 9,997 14% 26
930 1,861 11,164 17% 1,638
123,354 133,443 826,373 16% 75,957
$ (76,898) $ (43,311) $ 2,564 $ 10,412




06-Solid Waste Disposal Revenues and Expenses

Line 2 Charges for Services - Solid Waste: This is the charge for regular pick up of solid waste. YTD trending slightly under
budget at 15%.

Line 3 Assessment & Fees: This account includes special assessments for refuse land use fees for current & prior years. .
YTD will trend under of over budget depending on timing of property tax receipts. The majority of these fees are collected
in December & April.

Line 4 Other Charges: Other charges includes delinquent fees & penalties & penalties on delinquent taxes. Can trend
under or over budget depending upon time of year revenues are received.

Line 5 Board Discretionary Revenue: This is the amount that would be transferred in from discretionary funds if this fund
operates at a deficit for the fiscal year. There was no deficit budgeted for FY 20/21.

Line 9 Salaries: This is the salaries for solid waste workers. YTD trending slightly higher than budget at 20%

Line 10 Benefits: Benefits include employee insurance, CalPERS retirement, workers compensation, payroll taxes, and
education and training. YTD is trending at 19%.

Line 12 Contractual Services: Contract Services include Burrtec fees & other misc. contract services. YTD is trending on
budget at 17%.

Line 13 Disposal Fees: Fees include SB County disposal fees & green waste disposal fees. Can trend under or over budget
depending upon time of year expenses are incurred.

Line 14 Operations & Maintenance: O&M includes vehicle maintenance, vehicle fuel, operating supplies & uniforms. Can
trend under or over budget depending upon time of year expenses are incurred.

Line 15 Other Operating Expenses: Other Operating Expenses include rent for park storage, telephone, postage, event
expense, public outreach, printing, small tools & bad debt expense. Can trend under or over budget depending upon time
of year expenses are incurred.

Line 16 Admin Allocation: Admin Allocation shows the monthly transfer allocation of admin expenses to the Solid Waste
Fund.



Helendale CSD
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Administration

As of August 31, 2020
(Unaudited)
August 2020 YTD Actual Budget % Budget PYTD

1 Operating Revenues

2 Tower Rent $ 11,308 $ 2711 % 150,420 15% % 20,624

3 Property Taxes 6 6 103,844 0% 2,229

4 Solid Waste Billing & Fees 13,294 27,456 149,129 18% 24,165

5 Fees & Charges 1,931 1,961 14,000 14% 3,288

6 Investments 995 2,001 45,000 4% 18,071

7 Other Income 1,424 1,424 6,800 21% 2,290

8 Board Discretionary Revenue (18,923) (38,979) (332,624) 12% (34,170)

9 Total Revenues 10,035 16,578 136,570 12% 36,497
10 Expenses
11 Salaries & Benefits
12 Salaries 61,290 88,863 511,463 17% 71,467
13 Benefits 17,291 25,401 200,548 13% 33,119
14 Directors' Fees 7,288 9,289 89,000 10% 6,217
15 Total Salaries & Benefits 86,227 124,073 801,011 15% 110,913
16 Contractual Services 25,322 44,609 217,210 21% 72,618
17 Insurance - 64,791 84,673 T7% 52,803
18 Utilities 2,678 4,353 25,732 17% 1,761
19 Operations & Maintenance 7 132 5,216 3% 150
20 Permits & Fees 701 10,757 14,685 73% 6,106
21 Office & Other Expenses 2.527 13,719 54,122 25% 11,404
22 Admin Allocation (93,035) (186,069) (1,116,414) 17% (163,837)
23 Total Expenses 24,428 76,365 106,235 72% 91,918
24 Net Income (Loss) $ (14,393) $ (59,787) $ 30,335 $ (55,422)




10-Administrative Revenues and Expenses
Line 2 Tower Rent: Tower Rent includes radio tower site rent. YTD is trending slightly under budget.

Line 3 Property Taxes: This account includes current & prior property tax & penalties. YTD will trend under of over budget
depending on timing of property tax receipts. The majority of receipts are in December and April.

Line 4 Solid Waste Billing & Fees: This includes franchise fees & billing for solid waste. YTD is trending at budget at 18%.

Line 5 Fees & Charges: Fees & charges consists of credit card processing fees & other misc. fees. YTD is trending a little
under budget at 14%.

Line 6 Investments: This account includes investment income & unrealized gain/loss on investments.

Line 7 Other Income: Other Income includes recycling revenues & other misc. income. Year to Date (YTD) can trend
over/under budget due to timing of receipts.

Line 8 Board Discretionary Income: Board Discretionary Revenue includes the transfer of the following for Fund 05:
e Radio Tower Site Rent —$11,308 (line 2)
e Property Taxes - $6 (line 3)
e Solid Waste Franchise Fees - $7,609 (part of line 4)

Line 12 Salaries: Salaries Expense includes full time, part time & overtime labor. YTD is trending on budget at 17%.

Line 13 Benefits: Expense in this category include: employee group insurance, workers compensation, payroll taxes,
employment expense, education & training, and employee benefit & morale. YTD is trending below budget at 13% due to
timing employee morale & training expenses.

Line 14 Directors’ Fees: This category includes directors fees as well as directors training, seminars & mileage expense.
YTD is trending under budget at 10%.

Line 16 Contractual Services: Contract Services include software support, legal services, & auditing/accounting services.
YTD is at 20% due to higher than anticipated legal costs.

Line 17 Insurance: This account includes both general & vehicle insurance expenses. YTD is at 77% due to policy renewals
occurring in July.

Line 18 Utilities: Utilities includes telephone expenses & electricity. YTD is trending on budget at 17%.

Line 19 Operations & Maintenance: O&M includes vehicle maintenance, vehicle fuel, mileage & travel reimbursement,
uniforms, & equipment maintenance. Will trend under or over budget depending upon time of year expenses are
incurred.

Line 20 Permits & Fees: This category includes the annual LAFCO fees, and the GFOA application fee for the budget
award, and San Bernardino County Fees. YTD is at 73% due to July payment of LAFCO fees.

Line 21 Office & Other Expense: Office & Other Expenses include board meeting supplies, public relations, community
promotion, bank charges, office supplies, postage and dues & subscription. YTD is at 25% due to timing of public noticing
fees occurring in July.



COMMUN,.
RN
10141810

3 Helendale Community Services District

DATE: October 15, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
SUBJECT: Agenda item #5
Discussion Only Regarding COVID-19 Pandemic Update

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Receive and file.

STAFF REPORT:

San Bernardino County is hopeful to transition to the red category in the next few weeks.
However, we had anticipated the transition occurring two weeks ago and that was not the case.
Many counties around us have transitions towards full reopening as depicted on the map below.

Statewide metrics ' Find 2 county

i
{7 Select a county for updated metrics

51

New COVID-19 positive
cases per day per 100K

3.2%

Positivity rate

Current “adjusted case rate” for our county is 9.6. County’s actual cases per day per 100k is 9.2.
Positivity rate is 6.4%. The State issues is updated report every Tuesday. Additional information
will be provided to the Board at the meeting on Thursday.



Staff continues to monitor the cash flow and the unpaid accounts as the prohibition for
disconnections continues. Following is the most recent information as we transition into a new
month with billing being sent out this week. The District transitioned over $20,000 in old
outstanding payments to the tax rolls thereby reducing the current amount in arrears to $50,020
and increase from $42,677.47 reported in August.

Lastly, the District continues to exercise precaution in daily operations with protocols in place to
protect the staff and the public. With flu season approaching, there is heightened concern from

the medical community regarding the combined impacts of the normal flu season and COVID-19.

FISCAL IMPACT: As outlined above.

POSSIBLE MOTION: None

ATTACHMENTS: None



Helendale Community Services District

DATE: October 15, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #6
Discussion Only Regarding Mandatory Testing Requirements for PFAS

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
None

STAFF REPORT:

In 2019, Assembly Bill 756 was signed into law and amended the water code requiring water
systems to being testing for “per and polyfluoroalkyl substances referred to as PFAS. The water
system is not required to perform these related water quality tests, however, VWWRA, Cal Portland
cement and CSA 42 in Oro Grande and City of Adelanto are all required to test for PFAS.

On July 9, 2020, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted Order WQ 2020-0015-DWQ
which mandates that all wastewater facilities with a design of over 1million gallons per day are
required to perform quarterly testing. Only certain laboratories are able to perform these tests
and upon investigation, Staff has estimated that this will cost an additional $36,000 from the
wastewater budget for the one year of testing.

Staff is awaiting responses to emails sent to the state and more information will be forth coming.
FISCAL IMPACT: Approximately $36,000

POSSIBLE MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS: Lighting layout



Ve ; Gavin Newsom
N ==/ GoveRnoR

nnnnnnnnnn \’\‘ :;f:;:i:l.:gilﬁhc
Water Boards o/ Eviommiial seorecron

State Water Resources Control Board

WATER CODE SECTIONS 13267 AND 13383 ORDER FOR THE
DETERMINATION OF THE PRESENCE OF PER- AND POLYFLUOROALKYL
SUBSTANCES AT PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT WORKS

ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ

Pursuant to Water Code sections 13267 and 13383, the State Water Resources Control
Board (State Water Board) requires you to submit information as described herein.
Failure to comply with this Order may subject you to civil liability of up to $10,000 per
day for each day in which the violation occurs.

Publicly owned treatment works (POTWSs) are potentially significant receivers of per-
and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) and have the potential to discharge these
wastes to the environment. Potential discharges include, but are not limited to,
wastewater effluent to surface waters and/or percolation basins, biosolids, and reverse
osmosis concentrate/retentate from some treatment facilities. Attachment 1 presents a
conceptual model of PFAS emissions from a POTW (Interstate Technical Regulatory
Council (ITRC), Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances, March 2020). Your agency has
been identified as owning or operating one or more POTWs in California that have a
design capacity at or exceeding one million gallons per day (mgd), which is the scope of
this Order. Additional orders may be issued in the future for facilities with less than an
average dry weather design flow of 1 mgd capacity. Attachment 2 presents a list of
agencies and facilities required to comply with under this Order.

This Order requires completion of the following tasks:

1. Conduct sampling and analysis for each POTW listed in Attachment 2 and
submit the results of the sampling according to the requirements found in
Attachment 3, Technical Sampling and Reporting Requirements.

2. Complete the questionnaire in Attachment 3 (Sections C.3 and D) for each of

the POTWs listed in Attachment 2. The information required by the
guestionnaire shall be submitted electronically.

E. Joaquin EsQuIVEL, cHAIR | EILEEN SOBECK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 85814 | Mailing Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-0100 | www.waterboards.ca.gov



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ -2- July 9, 2020

L FINDINGS

A. WHAT ARE PFAS?

PFAS are a family of more than 5,000 man-made and mostly unregulated chemicals
that have been produced since the mid-1900s. They are mobile, persistent, and
bioaccumulative. They are resistant to degradation in the environment and when
degradation occurs, it often results in the formation of other PFAS compounds. The
PFAS compounds have very different physical and chemical properties. Currently, the
key classes of concern are perfluoroalkyl sulfonic acids such as the long-chain
perfluorooctanesulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA).

PFAS are manufactured globally and have been used in the production of a wide range
of industrial and household products. Discharges to sewer systems from these sources,
including disposal of landfill leachate and firefighting foam, results in PFAS in the
influent to POTWSs. Typical POTW treatment systems are not designed to remove
PFAS. Therefore, the discharge from POTWSs, especially those with industrial inputs,
are possible contributors of PFAS to the environment. The Water Boards issued
investigative Orders to airports, landfills, and plating shops pursuant to Water Code
section 13267 to determine the presence of PFAS in wells proximal to those facilities.
Those facilities can be contributors of PFAS to a POTW. (ITRC, History and Use of
Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Fact Sheet, November 2017).

PFAS are also found in many products such as dental floss, non-stick cookware, food
packaging materials, non-stick products (e.g., Teflon™), waterproof and water repellant
textiles, water repellant furniture, carpet, polishes, waxes, paints, cleaning products,
medical garments, and fire-fighting foams (aqueous film-forming foams; AFFF). PFAS
are used in the aerospace, automotive, chemical, electronics, metal coatings and
plating, and textiles industries due to their friction-reducing characteristics. PFAS have
the potential to enter the waste stream from many different sources. Potential
firefighting sources of PFAS include airports and aviation facilities, military bases and
training centers, petroleum refineries and terminals, and petrochemical production
facilities. Non-industrial PFAS sources include waste disposal facilities, wastewater
treatment plant operations, and biosolids application to land. More information on PFAS
chemicals can be found at the United States Environmental Protection Agency

(U.S. EPA) website (www.epa.gov/pfas). Additional information about PFAS can be
found at the State Water Board's PFAS website at
https://www.waterboards.ca.qgov/pfas/.

PFAS are extremely persistent in the environment and highly mobile in water. People
can be exposed to PFAS through food, food packaging, consumer products, house
dust, and drinking water. Since these chemicals have been used in an array of
consumer products, scientists have found PFOA and PFOS and other PFAS
compounds in the blood of nearly all people tested. Exposure through drinking water



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ -3- July 9, 2020

has become an increasing concern due to the tendency of PFAS to accumulate in
groundwater.

Based on current available peer-reviewed studies on laboratory animals and
epidemiological evidence in human populations, the U.S. EPA released the following
statement:

“These studies indicate that exposure to PFOA and PFOS over certain levels
may result in adverse health effects, including developmental effects to
fetuses during pregnancy or to breastfed infants (e.g., low birth weight,
accelerated puberty, skeletal variations), cancer (e.g., testicular, kidney), liver
effects (e.g., tissue damage), immune effects (e.g., antibody production and
immunity), thyroid effects and other effects (e.g., cholesterol changes).”

Please see U.S. EPA Technical Note (www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2017-
12/documents/ffrrofactsheet_contaminants_pfos_pfoa_11-20-17_508 0.pdf) for more
information.

B. WHICH PFAS MUST BE ANALYZED?

The Water Boards are concerned about all PFAS that exist in the environment. Due to
analytical limitations, the focus of this Order is on 31 PFAS analytes listed in
Attachment 3. The PFAS analyte list is not exhaustive but is intended to serve as a
minimum requirement for sampling pursuant to this Order. Some laboratories may be
capable of analyzing additional PFAS that are not included on the list.

C. WHY IS THE WATER BOARD REQUIRING THIS SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS?
The State Water Board and the Regional Water Boards are charged with the protection
of the beneficial uses of water in California, including water used or that could
potentially be used as drinking water. If PFAS-bearing wastes were discharged into the
wastewater collection system, then it is likely that PFAS were discharged from the
POTS in the effluent (including brine) and biosolids. The discharge of effluent may pose
a threat to water quality if the effluent was discharged directly to surface waters or
allowed to percolate to groundwater. PFAS in effluent discharges entering receiving
waters also have the potential to bioaccumulate in aquatic food webs. Land application
of biosolids may pose a threat to water quality by constituents percolating to
groundwater or through water (such as irrigation water or storm water) carrying
constituents to surface waters. The activities included in this Order are part of a
statewide effort to 1) evaluate PFAS groundwater and surface water impacts and

2) conduct a preliminary investigation of the mass loading of PFAS into the POTW and
then leaving the POTW in different media (treated wastewater, brine, biosolids). The
State Water Board intends to direct other dischargers identified as potential PFAS
sources in the state to perform PFAS testing. The State Water Board and the Regional
Water Boards will evaluate the data collected to make informed decisions in
implementing appropriate regulatory action.



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ -4 - July 9, 2020

D. WHAT LEVELS ARE A PUBLIC HEALTH CONCERN?

In May 2016, the U.S. EPA established drinking water Health Advisory Levels of

70 parts per trillion (ppt) (0.07 micrograms per liter (ug/L)) for PFOA and PFOS,
individually or combined. These concentrations are now considered a preliminary
remediation goal. The U.S. EPA Draft Interim Recommendations to Address
Groundwater Contaminated with Perfluorooctanoic Acid and Perfluorooctane Sulfonate
released in April 2019 suggested setting a remedial screening level at 40 ppt for PFOA
and PFOS (individually). For more information on these advisories see the U.S. EPA
PFAS website (www.epa.gov/pfas).

In August 2019, the State Water Board lowered the drinking water notification levels for
PFOS and PFOA to 6.5 ppt and 5.1 ppt, respectively. In February 2020, the State
Water Board lowered the response levels for PFOA and PFOS from 70 ppt combined to
10 ppt for PFOA and 40 ppt for PFOS based on a running four quarter average. More
information on notification levels for PFAS compounds can be found on the State Water
Board’s Division of Drinking Water PFOA and PFOS website
(https:llwww.waterboards.ca.govldrinking_waterlcertlicldrinkingwaterlPFOA_PFOS.html

).

Water Code section 106.3 indicates it is the policy of the State of California that
every human being has the right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water
adequate for human consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes. This Order
promotes that policy by directing investigations to determine the presence of PFAS
in and near waters that could be used for drinking water purposes.

. WATER CODE SECTIONS 13267 AND 13383 ORDER FOR TECHNICAL OR
MONITORING REPORTS

Water Code section 13267(b), authorizes the regional water boards to “require any
person who has discharged, discharges, or is suspected of having discharged or
discharging, or who proposes to discharge waste within its region... or is suspected of
having discharged or discharging, or who proposes to discharge, waste outside of its
region that could affect the quality of water within its region shall furnish, under penalty
of perjury, technical or monitoring reports which the regional board requires... In
requiring those reports, the regional board shall provide the person with a written
explanation with regard to the need for the reports and shall identify the evidence that
supports requiring that person to provide the reports.”

Water Code section 13267(f) authorizes the State Water Board to require this
information if it consults with the Regional Water Boards and determines that it will not
duplicate the efforts of the Regional Water Boards. The State Water Board has
consulted with the Regional Water Boards and made this determination.



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ -5- July 9, 2020

Water Code section 13383(a) authorizes the Water Boards to “establish monitoring,
inspection, entry, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements... for any person who
discharges, or proposes to discharge, to navigable waters, any person who introduces
pollutants into a publicly owned treatment works, any person who owns or operates, or
proposes to own or operate, a publicly owned treatment works or other treatment works
treating domestic sewage, or any person who uses or disposes, or proposes to use or
dispose, of sewage sludge.” Section 13383(b) continues, “the state board or the
regional boards may require any person subject to this section to establish and maintain
monitoring equipment or methods, including, where appropriate, biological monitoring
methods, sample effluent as prescribed, and provide other information as may be
reasonably required.”

The release of PFAS into the environment or the disposal of wastes containing PFAS
constitutes a discharge of waste as defined in Water Code section 13050(d). The
discharge of wastewater containing PFAS to a sanitary sewer system constitutes the
introduction of pollutants into a POTW as described in Water Code sections 13383 and
13373, and Clean Water Act section 502.

Pursuant to Water Code sections 13267 and 13383, you are hereby ordered to
submit the reports identified in Attachment 3." Additional information regarding
requirements for submitting reports under these sections of the Water Code is included
as Attachment 4. Any requests for extensions must be submitted to the Regional
Water Board identified in the cover letter of this Order for approval by the Executive
Officer.

lll. COST AND BENEFIT OF TECHNICAL OR MONITORING REPORTS

Water Code section 13267(b) specifies that the burden, including costs, of these reports
must bear a reasonable relationship to the State Water Board’s need for the reports and
the benefits to be obtained from the reports. The total cost of conducting the sampling
and preparing the reports required by this Order is estimated to be in the range of
$5,000 to $25,000 for sampling and reporting.

The cost of the reports bears a reasonable relationship to the benefit to be gained
because, in terms of public health and environmental harm, contamination of
groundwater and surface water must be identified before corrective action can be taken,
if appropriate. As described further in this Order and in Attachment 3, the recipients of
this Order are likely discharging PFAS, which EPA has determined may cause adverse
health effects.

T Monitoring and reporting for groundwater and discharges to land are required pursuant
to Water Code section 13267. Monitoring and reporting for discharges to surface water
are required pursuant to Water Code section 13383.



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ -6 - July 9, 2020

IV. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT

The issuance of this Order is an action to protect the environment and is categorically
exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
sections 15304 and 15308, Chapter 3, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations.

V. PENALTIES

Water Code section 13268 provides that failure to submit the required groundwater
monitoring/reporting information by the specified compliance date, or falsifying any
information provided therein, is a misdemeanor and may subject you to administrative
civil liability of up to $5,000 for each day of violation.

Water Code section 13385 provides that failure to comply with surface water
monitoring/reporting information may result in administrative civil liability of up to
$10,000 for each day of violation. Please be advised that compliance with this Order is
not a substitute for compliance with other applicable laws.

Therefore, pursuant to Water Code sections 13267 and 13383, you are hereby ordered
to:

1. Complete the questionnaire in Attachment 3 (Sections C.3 and D) for each of
the POTWs listed in Attachment 2 for which your agency is identified as the
responsible agency. The questionnaire shall be completed by the responsible
agency and submitted no later than the submittal of the second quarter
analytical results from the treatment system sampling. The information
required by the questionnaire shall be submitted electronically using the form
accessed through Geotracker and required supplemental information should be
submitted electronically in a pdf format to the same website as the questionnaire.

2. Conduct sampling and analysis for each POTW listed in Attachment 2 for which
your agency is identified as the responsible agency and submit sampling results
according to the requirements found in Attachment 3, as outlined below.

e For POTWs with an existing groundwater monitoring and reporting
program under an order issued by the State or Regional Board, submit
within 60-days prior to conducting the first groundwater monitoring
event the rationale and location of proposed groundwater monitoring wells
for a one-time sampling event (refer to Attachment 3, Section 3.b for
specific details).



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ -7- July 9, 2020

e Analytical results from the treatment system and groundwater sampling
events shall be uploaded into the Water Board's GeoTracker system
within 30 days of receiving the laboratory analytical report.

e One monitoring report summarizing the treatment system and
groundwater monitoring shall be uploaded into the Water Board's
GeoTracker system no later than 60 days following the receipt of the
last analytical laboratory report.

Perjury Statement

Pursuant to Water Code section 13267(b)(1), the State Water Board requires you to
include the following perjury statement, signed by a duly authorized representative, in all
reports submitted pursuant to this Order:

“I, Eileen Sobeck, certify under penalty of law that this document and all
attachments were prepared by me, or under my direction or supervision, and the
information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate,
and complete. | am aware that there are significant civil penalties for submitting
false information.”

July 9, 2020 5:‘“’"/ bt

Date EILEEN SOBECK, Executive Director

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1 — Conceptual Site Model for Per and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances at
POTWs

Attachment 2 — List of Facilities

Attachment 3 - Technical Sampling and Reporting Requirements

Attachment 4 — Fact Sheet — Requirements for Submitting Reports under Section
13267 and 13383 of the Water Code



6€ 40 | 39Vd

0202 yo.ep ‘seoueisgng jAyjeoionfjod pue-iad ‘[1ounos) Aiojejnbay [eaiuydss | s)ejsisjuj WwoJ4

(onoiqsonoiqe) siosinosid jo uoneulojsuel] @ UOHEAYU| @ UONOSAPY/UOIsiadsig/uoisnyid @  uolisodaq ousydsowly @ AN

.00

i iy

cm._.tinzaonﬂ

SIN3WIa3s

© uogeoijdde (sapem Bupyurip)

ug ..Irns.FL.

° e suoissiwa SUOISSIWe SUDIssIWa
© siNawiaas " 5 i~

vioig @5__ ﬁa @_a
00 00 Hv

SIONVLSANS TAMTIVOHONTAATOd ANV -H3d 40 FONISI¥d IFHL 40 NOILVYNINNILIA
dHL 404 ¥3AYO0 €8€€L/L92€L NOILO3S 300D H3LYM

SMLOd 1e saouejsqng |Ayesonyhjod pue Jad 10} [9poN 831S [enydasuon
I AINJWHOVLLY

020z ‘6 AInr OMQ-G100-020Z2 OM H3AHO0



6¢€ 4O ¢ 39vd

. eieqieg eleqieg aue o)sin ousig
S | $9SIS000LOAN | 100Z0L0ZYE | LYI8BE | goc | 80LES i Sotaes | ey dLMM OS OW0BIUON | JseoD lenusd | £ | 88ZLYE
gl 55615000LQdN | L00E0LO¥Y € | S9968¢ | ZnuD ejueS | 99056 | Aelien snodos | eue Apuni 002 Auo Aellep snoog dLMM Aallep siodg | jseoD i) | € 110952
s odsiqQ peoy
967 | 1¥SLS000LGAN | LOOEOLOOVE | EEOBLY | gnoUCL | ZHVEB | ABEOMOW | o onooce oot Qs Aeg ouo | dLMM SoonkeDyAeg ouop | 1seop eauad | £ | BupLie
2 | 52515000L0dN | LO0LOLOZFE | OVOBLY | gupec | £4086 |  EUSIUIdIED | 19815 UIXS LSES as euepudieD JLMM QS eualuidied | 1seodeaus | £ | Zesele
. odsiqQ aso dlMM
€€ | L1515000L0dN | LOOLLLOOVE | 000EY | gniues | S¥YES 0U800 | 20Id BUOIV 0091 | ogeiae sin ues umeq | as 0dsiqo sin ue dnog | ECOBAUeO | € | 188162
; pieasinog dLAMM [euoiBay
967 | Y0SLS000LOdN | 2008LL0/2€ | 9896y | Aeiewow | £g6e6 QUNBI | 0w tog trgps | “3EM 2UO Aeieiuom o e oopy | 15E00tMue0 | e forLive
G | v6riSO00LOAN | LOOSOLOZYE | LZOEBE | pea | 9EVES soduo | TV IECS Ao v0duior] M [euoiBey sodwo | 1seop e | € | SLELEE
¢ | 68PISO00LOAN | LODLOOLZE | 9v996E | Aeseluow | Zz6es PUED | PEOMORISYEE [ e ouan diMM Baly jowseg | 1seopfenuad | € | L8ZELZ
61 | 18LSO00LOAN | LOO90LOOVE | SSLEOP | amo. | GvPE6| Uoeegowsid| w7 Apeid 0gg A0 yoeag owsid dLMM Yoeeg owsid | 1seo0 eued | £ | 61S8YZ
: 0dsia0 102 91 LIS SEOINIDS JLMA YOISI
5L | sozezooordam | 10020100vE | ZELLEL | gnyuek | 82ves | ewawed | oo 00T inuiion euqued | ssones Aunuios euquep | SE00IBINED | € | esezie
L | 06298000LHOM | SISOELOVEYL | £6£2ZEL | nomsis | L6896 9% | iy ase A0 BfoIA diMmAD BYRIA | seoouuoN | L | BESYLe
PZ'G | $E9BZ000LHAM | WNHOLSIZ88) | 095507 | IPIOQWNH | 10556 e¥ein3 | aueT JNyIH LOEY R0 eing | dLMM JoNY N3 Ao eYeind | iseoouuoN| L | 0L0Eze
§'L_ | ZGv8Z000LHAM | WNHOSEIERaL | ¥BLLOY | PIOGWNH | 0v556 eunuos | elowsuid 08l Ao euntio JLMM AIQ BUno] | 10O UMON | || 680822
L | v251500010dN | NOSOZE0vBEL | £50G2y | BUIOUOS | GZyG6 |  GIepiondid | Peow sy 00/ R0 ofepIeno) JLMM RID 9IEPioA0I0 | J5e00 WHON | | | 888¥lz
. Pang
€1 | 69515000L0dN | NIWOBLO0BEL | 9LL00V | OUOPUSI | 06VS6 SUMA | 0)0087 GON 008 A S dIMMANO sWm | seooukoN | L | ovezsz
€2 | 05615000L0dN | WNHOPLIZ8aL | LLvize | WPIOQUNH | 12656 QBN | ¢ unos ooe Ao ereosy ALMMAID BIRolY | iseoQUMON | L [ $91902
9L | 8v5LS000L0dN | NAO900v8VL | 82Zv0b | OHONIeQ | L£Sg6 | AuDJueoseid |1eans Aisled 012 RiD WeoseI) dLMM AIDWsoselD | 1800 (WON | | | 904912
SZZ | S¥SLS000LOAN | NOSOLE0Z88L | OLbZee | BWouos |Z6vSe | oSPUM | e, FECR | pouisia serem Jospuim dIMM umoL Jospuin | 1seoduuoN | L | 064222
106 | 8651S000LOdN | NIWOGZOYBEL | STYELY | OUPOPUBI | Z8YS6 YN | ommenr) 00c Ao yenin dLMMAD yenin | iseoouon | L | 096892
L | cesisoooradN | Nawoesovesl | zozogy | ousopus | zevss |  BBRIBOL | o giae oS ko 66esg w04 dIMM A0 BBeig Loy | iseooupon| L | ssosze
190 | L15150001QdN | WNHOYB0Z88L | 25720y | IPIOGWNH | 12656 | PIMAKSIIYOW | PeOX J9IIH 6.9 0s0 sliAfeluN dLMM dlIVKaIUBON | 15800 WioN | || £600¥2
L | $2v1S000LQdN | NOSOSY0Zg8L | 91666 | BWOUOS | BPYGe | BINGSPIROH | o0 Jo] Aug BangspieaH dLMM AuD Binqspreor | 1se0Q LMON | | | 22662z
: SHON 91[and 10 JU [eU0iBaIgNS
pE'lZ | £061G000LOdN | NOSO660£88L | 8E18/C | BWOUOS | [0pSE | BSOY EIUES | PEOM OUBITO0EY | 4o A eSOy EWES cUnton bsoy peg | SEOOUMON| L | goL85T
aon al
al egoio pieog # a
MO|4 109811089 aiam ainseap Aunon diz Ao ssalppy aweN Aouaby awepN fioed jeuciBoy uoiBey | Auioes
ubisaqg Bay
(SMLOd) SHYOM LNIWLYIHL GINMO ATOINENd LY SFONVLSENS TANTVONONTAAIOd ONY-¥3d 40 3ONISIéd FHL 40 NOILYNINYILIA
IHL HO4 ¥3AHO £88€1L/L62E1 NOILOZS 340D HILVM
S3LLMIDVA 40 LS - Z INIWHOVLLY
0z0z ‘6 AInr DMA-6100-0Z0Z DM ¥3QH0



6€ 40 € 39vd

pEocy
7L | £6615000LQdN | L0OZIL0OGYY | £sesee | eamuen | zioes | omewed | oo oo PEM | Ao seo puesnoyy dLMM uokue IiH | selebuy so] £691€2
Zv | 6YB000001MOM | Z00BOLO9SYY | 9EIEOY | EIMUSA | 09086 | emedEwes | oo oo 9IS A eined ejues 4HM eined Blues | sojebuy S0 $55059
; odsiqo peoy Aajlep dLM SOSQ s07 6# Aupoe4
ZL | vS6EO00LYOM | LIEOLEOOVE | BSS6LE | gnouoL |20VES|  SosOSON| e e tea | Bulokooy ojem sos0 soq | 1800 181U9D 918228
. eleqieg eieqieq 1S amd
9L | B0/SE000LMAM | SO0BOLOZVE | LEOLVL | ‘pume | LOMEG oo | vosenisea zes | o ereqieg sag | AMIDR VOEWEPSY 0101ST 13 | 15800 [AUSD zvveze
: Rjsoyiny MM
SL | 088YE000LHAM | 10000L0SYE | 8808LY | eeld eles | 02056 A0S | 40 FPISUINOS 006 | o106y AnoD LNOS ALMM YMYOS | 15800 [e4usD 650952
S'L | VZOVEODOLMAM | LOOOLLOZVE | ZBL9EE | pumer | E9VE6 Buenjos | 199115 YEO PHOL Auo Buenjos dLMM Buenjos | 1se0) [eAus) 189252
ue|
'S | 63SYE000LMAM | LOOELLOLZE | £896vE | ASIeWOW | 096¢6 PEPSIOS | Py IIOSHOW 0ZSPE RO PEPSIOS | o oo apemos peporag | 15800 1EAUSD £8952
K aue Rouaby yuswabeuep MM 9|lIAUOSIBM JO
LI | LLYZE000IMAM | O0vZ80ZIPYE | 922656 | ZnD ees | 92096 | amAvosieM | oo o Bl el | Ao pue i Aben ostley | 1SE00 EAUSO 152181
€1 | 1Z0ZE000IMAM | L00VOLOLZE | B9LZ0E | Asowom |ozees |  serezuog | 1O RS EVE Au0 solezU0D | ALMM S81eZu09 Jo KD | 15800 [esusD 209222
§v | ZLBLEOOOLMAM | LOOOOLOSEE | LbZ6SE | owueg ues | £Z0s6 BISIOH | onc ues o AU JOISHIOH | LM 98580 J9ISIIIOH | 1500 [enus) 565062
L | L8cLc000LMAM | L00SOL0ZZE | gvpiel | Aesewon |ogees | pleyussin [ oo toOd RO PIoYUBRID | LM PIeyUseID o A0 | IseeD enus) £68.22
: ereqieg P JANW S
L€ | LESOE000LMAM | LOOYOLOZVE | LOOSBE | ‘e | SSVES | BUBWEWES | oo . o voeues BUNBET | e | 15200 [eusO ¥219€2
L | 980080001MAM | 10090L0/Z€ | Li9bL | AesewoW | 0g6E6 seuges | OV IR Ao Buist | 4LMM Onsawioq Ao Bury | 15e00 esueD) 1205€2
S'6 | 92S6Z000LMAM | LODBOLOZVE | LZEELE | prme | 8SYEG| BUEBWEWES | PEONWEIEL09|  BUEWEIUESJOAID | ALMM BUEI BIUES JO KD | 150D eAUSD 8.955¢
d
687 | 6v/920000aM | 10000100vE | g80zvl | G O | zzves | osmepeosely | epieqes 5008 A0 osepeasery MM 0JopeOsEly | 15800 [e4U8D £59902
2L | 0S9LS000LGdN | LOOZOLOYYE | SEOBLY | ZUD BIUES |090S6 | ZuOEWES | L0 1000 Auo Zni3 ejues dLMM ZNI0 BIUES | 15800 eusD 269652
eleqieg Eleqieg | 199415 I[EUOUEA amd S30dN Jeuas
1L | ¥2915000L0dN | 10080L0ZYE | OgeviE | Coimes | €0LE6 i e SR, v [~y ranancd B LS L evvzze
2 | 609LS000LGAN | LOOVOLOVPE | L6YO6E | ZUD BWES | 12056 | OMAUOSIEM | oo o O] A0 Slmuosiep dLMM allauosiem | 15800 [esus) 28102
VoL | L6S1G000LAAN | L00Z0L0ZPE | LE08LY | oo | LbAES @jol09 | 20eld HOLON | as e dLMM QS BI9109 | 15800 [eAusD 895,22
d d
L'S | 28G15000L0dN | LOOLOLOOVE | 9/S66E | o uor | LOVEG|  goousa| PEOMOPRIdGE| AupodsiGosTues | dLMM odsiaQ sinues | 150D eaued 088352
. odsiao P sbuiids SaIq0Y
6% | 9/515000LdN | LOOSOLOOYE | O9EBLE | g on | 9vvEs | selaoyosed | FOETLES s .- LM SeldoY 0sed | 15e0D eusD 05L2v2
asn ai
ai ieqoio pieog al
Mmoj4 JoxoR1 085 aiam ainsea|y Ajunon diz A ssaippy awep Aouaby awepN Ajoe4 jeuoiBey Auoed
ubisaq Bay
(SMLOD) SHHOM LNIWLYIHL GINMO ATOIENd LV STONVLSENS TANTVONONTHATOd ONV-43d 40 JONISTd FHL 40 NOLLYNINYILIA
3HL 04 ¥IQHO £8EE1/L0Z€L NOILO3S 3000 HALYM
S3LLMIOVA 40 1S - Z INAWHOVLLY
0zoz ‘6 Ainr DMQA-§100-020Z DM ¥3QHUO




6€ 40 ¥ 39vd

sa|abuy pleAainod Aunog jueld uoljewepay
st | wvzioccordam | oiozorosiar | Lozsoy | gV |essie|  ewowi peswasoy | sefebuy S0 o SioLIsIQ o o s | S99BUYsoT| v | ozgsez
YHON LOE uojejueg Ajunony =
. anuaAy JUeld BuljoAoay JOIEMBISEM
€€l | ¥85L0000LMOM | LOOLOLOSSWY | OELLLY | BIMUSA | 5LOE6 asouwiii4 o Ao eiowilis Due i ooy | SABUYsOT| v | Lessze
. anuaAy SpPWsIg i
G'L | £SL0000LMAM | €00E0L09SYY | paSIEL | emueA [ 12086 | ediooW | oo (ot d | e hunog eimuen | HRM - dLMMuedicon | sepebuysoT| v | Lgere
sajabuy pieAajnog LONEYUES JO neaing JHMM
0z | ¥9LLO000LHAM | 10090L06L8% | LY0EZE o | 68006 | saIBUY SOT| o ot A olepusls - sopbuy sy | S9PBUYSOT| v | selseT
sajabuy pieAs|nog Jepy UoneyuES Jo neaing
0S¥ | 85L10000LHAM | Z0090L06LEY | LOGYBE 507 £6206 | Aod PP BABId |\ on oiain n00zL A1) sajeBuy S0 dlmm uouadAy | sejpBuy sol| v | £902€2
GOLZLY Sajabuy anuany UONe)UES Jo neaing )
08 | estioooordam | voosorosay | SIECHE | SOCTV lopie | sANNURA | ngoniooie o sy sog | cMMWA UBWILL D pleuog | seeBuy sol| v | 1USL92
) sajabuy peoy fug sej@buy so7 jo
9'LZ | £0LLODOOLNAM | £20/0L06MVY | 92Z8EEL toy || SSEL BOUSIEA | 1 aut carez | aS AoIEA B1EID BlUES dumenusies | sepbuysol| v | 6v80.2
anuany
. sajabuy Aug seabuy so jo weld
59 | S80L0000LHAM | LZOLOLOBIVY | LZSEEL woq | 0SEL6 | Ewei0 Bues 001U | oo exeio s | uoneweay ojep snones seibuy sol| v | p6rOgZ
peoy Ajunon -
0oL | esoLoo0ordam | ozolorolay | semest | oo™ | 1090 MM | W uBubLoM | seeBuy SO0 SIoWSI] oo aoni beop uog | SH1BUYSOT| v | 95109z
uInos g96L uoneyues Aunod
5 x
21 | 680L00001MGM | L0OKOLOBIEY | BPOSEL | ohey” | 208V6 | seseqeeo | OB UEROL qmm seusBin sen Jumeder | sepbuyson| v | 0v699Z
ajabu
SZL | 69800000LMAM | L00OLI0SSWY | vZesel | eimuen |s90g6 | AoleAmus | Tgonvolt Ao Aot g dOOM fallen s | sepbuy sol| v | €52192
. UOISIAI] J9JEMBISEM JUEld JUaWEal ]
L'1e | 80POO00OLMAM | LOOSOLOYSYY | €969 | BIMUSA | £€0E6 PIRUXQ | PY SUBUa L009 A A oMo prewg | SOPBUYSOT| v | oveore
. pecY Aoed
S'L | L6LOD0DOLNGM | £0000L09SVY | 81000y | MUOA | ZLOEG |  Olewed | oo oo FEH owsia selem oD | o oueey e esouweg | SIPPUVSOT| v | 2essie
: sajebuy JEENTS
G'Zh | ZEL00000LHAM | L00LOLOBLEY | BZYEOW coq | 20516 eI | oo ong | MdAN0 jueqing dumueqng | sepbuysol| v | seLziz
ssjebuy uoslie; 1eexs eosanbiy sajabuy so7 jo m»wvm:%o jueld sajabuy so €
00y | 8Y915000L0dN | €L0L0L06L8Y | PYSOLY oy || SvL06 o o 10ge | SPOUY SO0 SRS | 000y uopmjog sepem o | SRV ST ¥ | SLvEL
nejues Ajunc
EETEL oed
ZL | 0v91S000,QdN | LO000LOGHEY | LOLVZV | g | 70206 uolery L Ao uofeny ALMM uoleny | sepBuyson| v | 9.2802
BNUBAY EIMUIA PusiIa
£ 0ZS1S000LAdN | LOOPOLDISYY | BEOYZY | BIMUSA | LOOEE Binua QLN €969 fienues Aopep 12lo diMm Aallep lelo | sejebuyson |y | 91992
sajebuy UonENUES Jo neaing JUE]d UOHEWE0aY
06 | 29615000LQdN | S0090106L8F | 00VE6E oY | 16206 | oipadues | 1eens Aued vy o oo e e, | S99Buvso1| v | oeLsez
pL | 959000001MQM | L0020L09GVY | ZL8.8E | EIMUSA | 20026 BIBA | ool oom Ao eamuen Jumemnuen | seiebuysol| v | ¥50LLZ
m_aw_i ai leqol m._smhe fAuno di A ssal awep Aouab aweN Aypoe pieog # a
E| 1949811096 aiam W unoeo 1z 10 PPY N v lioe4 [euciBay uoibay | Ayjioed
ubisag Boy
(SMLOd) SHYOM INFWLYIHL GINMO A1OI1ENd LY STONYLSENS TANTVONONTIATOd ANV-43d 0 FONISTHd 3HL 30 NOLLYNIWEILIA
3HL ¥O4 HIAHO £8E€1/292€} NOILOIS 300D ¥ILYM
S3LLMIOVA 40 1811 - Z INGWHOVLLY
0202 ‘6 AInf DMQ-5100-020Z DM ¥IAHO




6€ 40 G 39Vd

€ | 1B/BZOCOLNAM | 100L0LOVSAS | 6veShL | eeinL | 8i9ce eqnuiq | ZLy OAY G299 Auo eanuig awmmeanua | g O] g fonese
; siakapy ({ousaid)
L0°L 969820001LHAM | L0O0E0LOPSAS PovLEL sJen| L2Ze6 18)eX3 1S5\ 9061 Ao Jeyex3 J41MM J8jex3 falen [eauan 49 ZLIele
L | ZZvBZ000LMAM | L00Z0L0SLAS | SSZSLE | weN | 5izee ouepa | eny opAT L1 Ao ouereq ammouera | o oD s | sores
EI saljiiin 21and Jo (ousaid)
88 PYESZO00LHAM | L00S0L00LAS | 66942F | oOuseld | 90LE6 ouseld | osuer m 2006 | Wweunredaq Ay ousedy JLMM feuoiBey ouseld | o prien | 39 | SHISLZ
ousa
b 6/842000LH0M | L00LOLO9LAS | OLEZHL sBuy | v0zes leusny A weniy3 | AuD leuany ALMM [BUBAY | (o \M _Mw__%nw 45 | ogiese
peoy {ousaiy)
9l 080/2000LHAM | 2Z0DO0LOSLAS | LBSEVE wiay| CLESH |  PIGUSIONEE | |10 o 1069 A0 pioysiaveg E# dLMM PloUSIONRE | o o oion | 35 | 602642
peoy (ousald)
Ge 820/2000L4AM | LO0O0OLOSLAS LLLIZEE wiay L0€€6 Pleysiaxeg zueld 3 00/1 Ao pisysiaveg Z# dLMM playsiaxeg AalleA leUsD 45 80ceLE
; |leay ({ousaid)
Syl 618920001L4AM | L00L0LOSLAS fota:FA 48 uiay £02¢6 Uinly ouWeD 13 10bz o unay 41MM Uy Asllep [eAUSD 45 POLELE
peoy aueln {ousaiq)
9 ¥829Z000VMAM | LLOOOJNYZES | 920Z2¢ | P%leN | O¥ES6 SR | sisg i snee nes Aug seremay JLMM feU0IBRY JOIEMIY | (oo oo | 98 | BlSLpL
. Auouyny pm : (ousaud)
5 LL9LS000LAdN | LOOZELOYSAS | 96L02F 2Nl | 519¢6 18I0 | 0ZL PEOY LOVOY | siamoy |1 Iscin-10pnD JLMM 1SCI0-IRAND | fo o enan [ 35 [ 991EL2
05 Hed [BUOlEN (ouso1)
I 20915000LAdN | 200L0L0220% o0gavey esoduepy | gLgS6 fedod i3 ©Q7g# 'peoy WSSO\ BdIMBg 41MM [BHOd |3 falleA [B3uan 45 Levece
E}salod €805 Yied |BUCHEN |aSN
ZL | 62515000L0dN | LODBOLOVZOS | ZLS6S | PadiaW | OvESE paaialy prosl Au paoseiy 4LMM Pa2IS fusaid) [ 1o | ze0p12
A0 09201 ) Aajjep |ejuag
. anuaAy (ousaid)
82 | /8VIS000LAdN | ZLOOOANOLODS | 8/Z62¢ | oOusaid | 619¢6 L= R —". Ao sinold ALMMSIOID | (oM eniion | 35 | B68PLZ
; peoy plepuels (ousaig)
§L | LB6ZE00OLYAM | 0BO0OONSLOS | €S9EEE uey | y9ze6 isyeys Wz oseez | HOS 19N Jo UuoN ALMM JBNY JOULON | o oniion | 35 | EVIELE
Auoyiny JLMM (ousaid)
L 9Y60£0001HAM | L00SOLOSLAS | LBLYPL wey | J0gE6 |  Ploysied | oAy soquiy LOLY uonENLES WIay Awoyiny uonenues way | Aejep jeauag | 35 | EPIELE
: peoy 1oumsiq
TV OvEPLO0OLHAM L0000 09SYY LBOEBE BlnjuaA Z1L0E6 ojjeWwE) pIemoH 1se3 051 fiejues ojuewen ddM ojjiewed sajpbuy so 14 612912
sajabuy AgPeg jueld
SL | 9¥Z10000LMAM | 6L0L0L0BLEY | LEBYVEL &0 99716 BuOwWOd | ABA SUBUINK 662 | SelebUY $0TJ0 SIS | ooy ssjep euowoyg | SPBU¥ SC1| v -] coz0sz
uonejues Alunon
sajpbuy anuaAy AUneD
AN SrZL0000LHAM | SL020L061L9Y 6Z8EEL 507 £0.206 soje) BwnId 5,591 salebuy $07 jo spusIq dym ssjohoD so sajabuy so7 4 9¥98€C
L uoneyueg Ajunon
sajebuy JEET Aunog
S¢ ¥PLL0000LHAM | PLOLOLOGLEY GZBEEl S0 51806 yoeag Buon sajpbuy s07 jo spusIg d¥M Yyoeag Buo sajabuy so 14 2998¢¢e
1 MOl 583 00vL uonejues Ajunos
.m_,w_vu I FA 1am E:mhw Auno diz Ay ssaippy swep Aousb sweN Aunoe pieog # ai
Jayoelj 009 a W 2 12 N v e jeuoibey uoibay | Aypoey
ubisaq Bay
(SMLOd) SHHOM LNIWLYIHL AINMO ATOIENd LY STONVLSENS TANTYOHONTHATOd ANY-HId 40 IONISTHd IHL 40 NOILYNINYZLAA
JH1 "H04 J30-0 £8EEL/L92€L NOILD3S A0 ¥3LYM
S3LMIDVA 40 1S1IT - Z INJWHOVLLY
0Z0Z ‘6 Ainr OMA-5100-0202 DM HIAAHO




6€ 40 9 39vd

’ JEENITS {ousaiq)
SV | LZZbEO00LHAM | S6000ONSLOS | 186LSE wey | 892¢6 el i e Ao yel JIMMBRL | g onoel | 45 | seale
821 | OVBEE000LMAM | L0060L00LAS | OSLOEE | OUSSlY | OVOEE |  EIOPUSIA | 199AS SOUIND €49 Ao E1opUBIN aummeiopuan | oo O | ug [ eziesz
ousad
GGl | ZVOSELO00LMAM | L0060LOSLAS | BO90EE wey | 052€6|  PUBHEJOW | BAY WBY ‘M LOY RO puepeoW SLAM PUBELN | oo _.M . Emw 5 | saee
ousal
8 866ZE000LHMAM | L00LOLOVSAS | SOSYPE | eMeinL | /S52e6 |  eliseod 108dsold 655 A9 sypnsepod ALMM OIINIOUOG | oo _.M _E,:mw 15 |ociesz
anuaAy (ousaiq)
z VE/ZE000LHAM | L00BLLOOLAS | 9Z€SvL | ouseld | 8v9g6 oed | oo eom tor) A0 Jeled Ammsmed | oo oDl a5 | sziese
ousal
L 06GZE000LHAM | L000LLO0LAS | G6VZEL | Ousdld | 9y9E6 | @A0D 8BUBID | 198NS UIS £E9 A0 @09 eBueIQ 4LMM 80D 8BURI0 | o >ﬂ _m E.mw 5 | zez
ousal
8 ¥06LE000LMAM | 1L00£0L0010S | 88E8YL sBuy | 0£Z€6 plojueH |  UCISNOH GSSOL Ao piojueH ALMM PIOJuEH | (oo \M _EEMW 5 | sz
v | 0oLt Z00E0LOVZOS | S6vSPL | PedleWN | ZZEs aupsn PecY AuD sunsND 41AMM BUSNS fousaid) |~ 4o | g)16)7
£000LHAM L WSO | Lonewses Logoz ! ' . AajjeA [eluad
any ousal
} Z82LE000LHAM | 1000100405 | 8908Z8 | ouseid | pezes uoiny | ussseT s L1EoE Ao uoiny ALMM UOINH | 0o \M = a_a““_uv 45 |elez
'6£€ X089 "O’'d
8Ll | LZ60E000LHAM | Z0090LOVZOS | Z6ELEE | PeolON | peess |  uoisBuinn pecY KO UOISBUIAI | 1AM 2N1S8Woq uoisBuIA fousaid) | o | gopozz
T ojles yroN 0912 i " : "M falen leausn
ousal
67 | GZ808000LMAM | 100L0L0VZOS | bZvSvL | PeOlOW | GE9Es |  sSoueg so| By UOSIPEW |iy Au1D soueg so7 LM soueg soT | oo \M g ::MW 15 | zaese
ousal
vZ'L | S0808000LMAM | L00SOLOVSAS | ¥SSSYL | eseinL | LvZee Aespur] | 961 PeoY LL9€Z A0 Aespury AL Respurt | oo _,M i zc%ov 45 |z
] any Aocmwgn:
Z1 | v2208000L0M | 10080L00LOS | O8ELEE | ousald | 0£9g6 UBWON | o an cane) Ao cmp:“x ALm uewsoy | oo OB dg | Lyevez
SPUsIq [epads
JLAMM 8.7 (ousai)
L LLEOS000LHAM | L00ZOLO0ZOG | LLEZVL | ©iopeN | p09E6 | evessed| vz PM 1090y | - luawpedaq s3iom ] 45 | so0L0z
iKinc) KIHnbL BpER sseg - z¢# Auno) esapepy | Aajlep (eauag
ousal
L GOEOSODOLNAM | L00LOLO0ZOS | 68ZSbL | EJOPEN | 2£986 eIopeW | Z/L LZ PY 8HOS) Ao esepen JLMM BIOPRIN | g \M e Eau_nw 45 | eaeLz
peoy ulejunop {ousaiy)
z 65L0S000LHAM | L0080L0SLAS | 91SS8E wey | L0EE6 wowey | B e and Juowe- LM uoweT | o \N e Emov 15 | viee
3 801 41MM ousalq
L0'L | YO00CO00LNAM | LOOLOLOSSOS | EPEZPL | Suwniony | /Zege | UmOISeWRr | Lo e oo ASUMNONEL | oo kb uomBuiEr | AogEnmenuen| ° | 09VESE
Sv'L | 0/9620004MAM | 100Z0L09LS | 98wl | sbuty | zizes u100109) ey A9 ueiooi0) 4LMA UBJ0I0D) fousald) I 1o 1 g016s2
) Aapum zeg . >m.=_w>H _m._u_.__wnw
9als ousalq
z 6826200014OM | 10000100205 | bZLvbl | EioPeN | 0L9g6 | euomMOuD | oo T RO BIIIYIMOYD ALMm elbgomous | e CRSD | ds | gokese
ousal
szl | ¥006Z000LHAM | LOOZLLOVSAS | LSOvyL | emeinL | gzzes | elAsieuuEd | PY ENESIA M 606 A0 slnssoue ALMM alinsioues | o o % _EEMUH 15 |eesz
m.w_z ai leqoin w._zm._ww Ajuno di Al ssal awep Aouab awepN Aupoes pleog # a
14 13)oel] 095 aiam W 2 1z 19 PPY N v N A |euoibay uoiBbay | Aypoey
uBisaqg Bay
(SMLOd) SYHOM LNIWLYIML GINMO AT11ENd LY STONVLSENS TANIVOHONTIATOd ONV-43d 40 FINISTd FHL 40 NOILYNINYILIA
IHL HO4 ¥IQHO £8EEL/292€L NOILOIS 3A0D HILYM
SIILMIOVA 40 1S - Z INFWHOVLLY
0202 ‘6 AInp OMA-5100-0202 OM ¥IAHO




6€ 40 £ 39Vd

" Blieya] ue|d juswieal ] (Buippay)
ZL | S0915000L0dN | L0OLOLOLLWS | L960LY | uusiD | g86%6 SMOIIIA . iy AuD Mol i e | JPi | B |wum
Z | 2651500010dN | L0O000LOSKVS | B9S6Zy | EISeus | L0096 |  uOSIspuY pe AuD uosispuy dodm uossepuy | PUPPIR T yye |y g0
pedny L02¢ ; KolleA [enueg
B0’ Buippa
pE | £9515000L0dN | POOSOLOSKVS | Z00ZZy | EISeuS | L0096 |  uOsipuy W Auo Buippoy o seteming | o PR | e | os0ssz
peoy lueid (Buippay)
Zb | ZSLSO00LOAN | LOOZOLOVOVS | 69v/6E | oWNG | L2656 M| s ionrs izee R4 090 | 1105 wonniiog serem oot | Aotlen lenuan | HS | S08LLZ
6
&L | ¥£SLS000LAdN | LOOSOLOSPYS | S8/G6E | EISeuS | 61006 | el eiseus Syl GO0 AuD ¥ eiseus aummorererseus | oo PP |y | 70067
. ue Buippa
§Z | 61515000L0dN | LOOLOLOZGYS | 2691Zy | BWEYSL | 08096 |  WNIE POM | @AuQ JSSOW 00L RO UM POS | Loowemen A LNIE Pog korp | ws | eLizse
: peoy Aua4 (Buippay)
V'l 905L5000LAdN | LO000LOZSYS | 86866€ | Bweuyal | L2096 Buwiod | 5 pies oLosz Ano Buiwiod JLMM BUII0D J0 AUD | g o8 tenuan | 85 | 094812
; aNUsAY uoibay 8|Irn0IQ d1MM uoibay a|jIaciQ {Buippay)
$9 | 86¥L5000LAJN | 10090L0VOVS | 89vsec | owng | 596se SRS s ineol T | i Rt oS chomas | Aten pen | 5 | Vezare
Buippe
88 | 08PLS000LAJN | LOOEOLOSYYS | G6LZLY | BISBUS | L0096 |  UOSISpUY | Peoy ZIBW 0222 Ao Buippey dLAWA Y0010 010 | o P _.MM.EMW ¥s | zosiz
Buippe
1'Z | ¥66LS000LOdN | LOOOOLOLLYS | Zl8OSE | UUSID | £9656 PUBLO | 00Z PY 00 LL69 Ao pueno dumapueno | o A trpor) | ws | eozere
. ANy (ousaid)
ZL | 098Lp0O0LMAM | L00PZLO0LAS | 26586 | Ouseld | SZLE6 ousaid | ol o oot amo ebeleiy ALMM QMO eBeieN | oo ornl | s | osiese
ousa.
9Z | 96E/S000LHAM | ¥0090L0GSOS | £8/LbL | Suwnionl | 0£S6 eiouog | 2)eBLINOS QOYL OO .3 LM euoBoy eiouos | ! ool as | earsse
9L | ¥9Z/S000LMAM | L000LLOVSAS | Lv6l9E | @Il | bi2e6 asein | " Auo aseiny 41MM 2:2InL tousaid) | j5 | zeresz
1S9M YInog /81 ’ KajjeA lenuad
ousal
8L | LYBILOOOLMAM | LOOELLOYSAS | 8LG6OY | @senL | L.2e6 elESIA | 88Z 9AV 6.SL Auo erresin ALMM BIESIA | o \M el a5 ez
ousal
56’ | Z959E000LMAM | L00LLL0SLAS | €09LEL | uly | 082Ee oosem |  1984S Yig 9vL Ao osEM LM 09SEM | o \M - s a5 |esiece
pieasinog (ousald)
8L | 0SS9E000LMAM | LOOPLLOYSAS | 9901/ | oML | 98286 |  @%elpoom eualen AuD eeIPooMm Amm opeoom | e o SRR ds | oviese
yinos 118
e ousal
S | 2S09E000LMAM | 9L00DNOLOS | Lizese | ouseid | p59E6 folpoay oo pky Ao Kelposy A B
any ofeuo) aso LM 08D {ouseid)
8 | 5S8SE000LMAM | L00Y0L00LAS | 8EwleL | oOuseid | 1g9gs |  BunasBupy el mworsee]  Siiiim s | e emes| = |
67 | 9v9SE000LHAM | L00GHL00LOS | 998vee | ousald | /S9E6 sobues | 190418 UL 00LL Ao 1eBues aimmsspues | oo U 4o eriese
1904S | Auedwogd Jsjepn Eerinpy jue|d Juswieal | {ousald)
L | 9SEPE000LMAM | SOLO0ONOZES | LESZ0v | ©ispew | 9£9c6 BN | | sl ol | messseomneosl | Mesammen| = | KSHIE
aom al
ai reqo1n pieog # a
:M.M.MQ 1940011099 aiam EMMM...E Aunon diz 1D ssalppy aswepN Aouaby awepN Ajjoe4 |euolBey uoiBsy | Ayiioes
(SMLOd) SHOM LNINLYIHL GINMO ATOI18Nd LY SFONVLSENS TANTVOHONTHATOd ONV-¥3d 40 IONIS3Md 3HL 40 NOLLYNIWYILIA
JHL ¥O4 ¥3AHO £8EEL/292€L NOILOIS 3A0D HILVM
S3ILMIOVA 40 1S - Z INIWHOVLLY
020z '6 AInr DMA-GL00-020Z DM ¥IAHO




6€ 40 8 39Vd

snusAY 10UsIq dIMM | (cusweloeg)
S 21915000LAdN 200001 08SVYS 166GV eqnaA L0656 alinslien ewAn 606 1998 AU BpUM msIq Je1eA AjunoD epur | AsiieA [eus) SS 090.€2
. Hied peoy PUISIg {ojusweloeg)
9¢ 0L9L5000LAdN | L0020L060895 GGZEEY | opelog |3 | 28956 uosewen | yeain Jeeq §og| uonebiu| opesod |3 dLMAM 381D Jeag falleA [enuan SS 86£6le
B0y UOHE! ojuawede
Gl 80915000LAdN | Z00S0L08¥YS LEZEEY ouejog L8956 elwig . m..wm_w " uﬁvmw Mda A0 sliiaeoep d1mm Apeisel Mw__m N bcmwp.w SS l50zze
FUENEIES
S0l 90915000LAdN L00LOLOLSYS 89.8¢% lapng L6656 Ao eang JAUQ suing Z0€ Ao egnp J1MM Al eanA ..Mm“._m> _mhcmw sS 966v.L2
B)S0D (ojuswelseg)
S LB6SLS000LAdN | L00LOLOLOSS LE00EY enuoy €156 poomjuaig | Aep supiid LGZZ Ao poomyusig dLMM Poomiualg | (o0 teguan) SS zegole
anua FIVENEIRE
€ 68G1G000LAdN | LOOZOLOBSYS | 9L0S0¥ eqani 19656 1SINYsAIO e Mcm,m and sinyaalio dLAMM 1SINYBAIIO \Mm___m AR ::mmnw SS 6v6SPe
aAlq (ojusweloeg)
cl 48G1G000LAdN | L0090L0OLEVS | ZLBZEP 1adeld 1v1S6 9|Iinesoy wedisap 1505 A1 slinesoy dLMM BA0I5) Jueseald falieA eausn SS 90.8¥2
peoy Ajoeq jonuod Aleny | (ousweiseg)
0g €8G15000LAdN | L0O080LOOSOS | ¥ELOOF | SNEISIUEIS | 0BESE HOHNL | e winos 106 Ao soopuny 1918\ [eUOIBaY Yooun] | ASliEA [E. .__:mnw SS 1£1992
aue OJUBLUEIOE
8.'¢ 085LS0001AdN | LOO0OLOGBZYS | ¥20S0¥ epeAsN 6656 | Aallep sselo uewsald 9 mmw A0 Asjlep sselg dLMM A AsjleA sselD \Mm“_m Al :cmmo SS 818.2¢
uinbeor Ajpoeq jonuon | (ouswernes)
S5 0951L50001LAdN | L00Z0LO6ELS | L9696€ ues 90256 uopols | aAug AreN 0052 A0 uopiools MM [euoiBay Uo0lS | Aalien [enusn SS 6€485Z
; peoy 38910 (ojusuwieloeg)
€2 0¥51S0001LAdN | L0000LO60OYS #00S6€ | opesoQ |3 | 29956 SN | 5 o000 00EZ AuD s|inisoeld JuMm dea10 umojbueH fallep |enusn S5 565622
2o GENEIRE
b 9€G15000LAdN | LO0BOLOBFYS 680170% ougjog 1 L5V6 BISIA Oy podiy ﬂooﬂm Ao eisip ory 4 LMM 1S8MULION Mow_m A e ::mwnw SS 6£¥992
B0’ Ojusuwieloe
1971 825150001LAdN Z7000dNLEVS €99.0¢ i82€e|d £0956 uingny aydo h‘vom_‘_ Ao wingny dLMM ungny me_m.; _EEwwnW SS £€490¢
anuaA ojuswieloe
GRS 0L51S000LAdN | LO0OZOLO0OSDS | 668ELY | Sneisiuels | LGEGE 0)sepoi enng «mwg_.‘ Ayo oisepopy 400M oisepop jo Ao Mow_m A le ::wwnw SS oviive
eo OJUBWEIOE
9t €0S1S0001LAdN L000080LSYS £6166¢E Ouejog 02956 siaeq siABQ PIO _Mw _.m_._ siAed ON dLMM Ulely SIAeQ DN \me_m..; _mh:wmnw 8¢ 926892
) B1S0D feq peoy aso {ojuaweloeg)
L'z L0S1LS000LAdN | €£0050L0.L08G 9/696€ eAUeD v15t6 fusnoosiq | exe moli 0ogl | Aeg Aseroosiq 4o UMoL dLMm Aeg fanoosig KalleA [enuen S8 SLeoze
. peoy (ousweroeg)
vl G6¥1S000LAdN L0000L0LSVS 9590V apng £6656 eQ e JusLujeal] osve Ao NeQ an dLMM AIID e e Aalie [eqUaD S§ Lyavie
Eh) ojuslleroe
gL | 98VLS000LOAN | L0000L0/SWS | Lizgzy | oA |9u86 SRR it e A0 sineq dLMM SiAeq Jo Ao | gl _EEMW s |eezeiz
3. sk UO123]|0! OJUSLIBIOE
818y BLr1LS0001AdN L00%L LOYEVS 99800F | ojusweloes | ZZ8S6 Qjusweoesg Emmm_mmm‘m. Auo cjuswesseg MM vum_m_.m._o....o bu_o umm \Mm_u_m> _m.z:mwuw SS 9gesie
B0y UOoljE; 0)JuBLEIOE
181 | LVLSO00LAN | Z00BOLOVEVS | 096507 | OWOWEIOES [ 85256 |  NIDNE | Dok oelS | L obew oowess | LM [euoBoy ojueueioes | (ONOUERSH T aq || ggpsz
]] Bulppe
9L | pY9LS000LAAN | LOOSOLOZEVS | L99.0v | sewnid | L.6S6 Aouinpy oo o2 | aso Aelien ueausuy dLMM A3ifEA ueDLIBY E_M . _%wcww ¥ | Lsvovs
asn al
atlt reqo|o pieog # ai
Mmo|d 190011009 aiam alnseap Aunos diz Ao ssalppy awepN Asuaby awepN Apjioeq jeuoiBay uoiBsy | Aupoey
uBisaqg Bay
(SMLOd) SHYOM LNIWLYIHL AINMO A1DIN8Nd LV SFONVLSENS TANTYOHONTIATOd ANY-43d 40 FONISIHd FHL 40 NOILYNINYIL3A
3HL YO ¥3AYO €8€€EL/292EL NOILD3S 3A0D HALYM
SILLITIOVL 40 1SN - 2 INIWHOVLLY
020z ‘6 AInp OMJ-5100-0202 DM H¥3AHO




6€ 40 6 39Vd

" uinbeor peoy 24 ejues (ojuauwieoeS)
Sl ZSS5£000LHAM | 20090L0080S | 9ZLL¥L ueg 19€56 NUBQIBAIY YOS 598E7 AnD sueqianry dLMMAUBGIBAN | £ohen lenuen S§ 148252
s peoy (ojuawiesoeg)
62'¢ £065E000LHAM | LO0Z0LO0SIS | €00CvL | Snesiuels | 89856 eplles auolild 00Z9 usig Meyues eplleg dIMM BPIES | cop A [BUSD SS 180652
. uinbeor . dl | (ojswesneg)
e 2ZPSE000LHAM | LOOSOLOBEDS | 8860FL ueg 99€586 uodry | @Ay BWIM N 652 Ao uodry onsawoq g [eLisnpu; uodiy | Asiiep [enuan S§ 28.2se
. uinbeor (ojusweloeg)
80l ZP6EE000LHAM | LOOBOLOGELS LYol ueg y0ES6 Aoeal | aauq AlioH 006€ Ay Koeay diMM AdelL falleA [euen SS £22992
. {ojusweloes)
L'l B68EEE000LHMAM | LOOLOLOBSYS erac " BqnA 10656 alinshiepy 18845 O 92§ Ko alnshiepy dLMM allinshiepy AsliEA [21U8D) SS 62.65C
. peOoy Aupoeqjuswieal) | (ojusweloes)
69'L | 6/EEE000LHAM | LODEOLOOSOS | €960CF | SNEISIUEIS | 09ESE UBLIMBN | 60 1 1K 0092 RO UBWMON | oo v ensenn uewaman o Ao | Aonien requan | SS | 05¢vPe
: anuaAy (ojusweloeg)
G§Z'e £08ZE000LHAM | ZOO00ONOSES | 89.G¢F | SNEISIUElS | €9ES6 uosiajed seidod LOBYL Ko uosieped 400DM uosianed Jo Ao falleA [enusD SS 28LLve
Sv'Z | 0£LZE000LMAM | LOOYOLO0SOS | 69958 | Sneisiuels | L9ES6 elepye0 | 1uuear] 0026 A0 elEPHEQ Jmmoepren | foeiERS) | og | zoggve
. e1son) @Al SMOopea JosIg (cuaweroes)
£y 6EGLE000LHAM | £1L000dNLO8S | LSL8CY BIUOD 1956 AspleO NUBA 0GH Ksejues asnoyuol] 41LAMAM @snoyual| fallep [Bnusn SS 9692¢€2
peoy foeg | (ojuswelseg)
€ gLLEOOOLYAM | LOOLOLOVELS 6SLY0Y | OJuBWEeIOeS | ZE9SE WBD | samio UM 65001 Ao Hen UONeWEP3Y B JLMM IED | AslieA [enuan SS 06992¢
: peoy {ojusweiseg)
2l LOLLE000LHAM | Z00LOLO0SDOS | 6BGEBE | SNEISIUBIS | OZES6 uosybnH wopasT 0049 Ao uosybny 4LMAn uosuBny KelleA [BAIUSD S8 zZL8oee
. 10282V uinbeor peoy ucpIoy | X foeg jonuo) | (ojuswerdseg)
G'g ¥E60E0001HAM | ZOOEOLOBEBS | \oococe ues Z¥es6 1poT YHON 15221 3D 1poT UoRNIod J81eA UBNOIS BUUM | ASIEA [E1USD SS pyvele
i peoy (ojuawelnes)
'8 S6.0€000LHAM | LLOOOANLEVS | L0Z8ch 1ade|d 8956 UIedUT | e AppI4 ShZL A ujooun 4LMM A ujooun folleA [eaues SS G9E8ET
. wasAg | (ojusweloes)
1’9 GLZ0E000LMAM | 200Z0LOLLVS | VEZ9VL e ZZ156 axepes|D | £§ AMH pIO G8YZ Aug aven MM feuoiBay Jseauinog | Aajlen [eiuad SS 126152
" uinbeor Kepn Jaydojsuyd Ayoed juawieal] | (ojuswesoeg)
§G'L | £620E000LMOM | LO09LOLBEES | L6GGEE ueg 0E£56 dosyien 00881 Ao doaie | o oiosuon doipe jo Auo | Alien fenuen | SS | VBLLC
e1oe
@'l | 2966200014QM | L0000LO0SOS | SBLLPL | sneisuels | L0eS6 soep | uebiow 00zy o se180 dimmseiea | (NSRS oo | reeie
: $H3eQ peoy 1510 J91ep dimm | (ousweses)
1'Z 959620001LHAM | Z0000L0LLVS 290.%1 e A 4l ayepes|y USSUSF §0/EL AU SHEO 9YeHea) | SIO LM 00 SYEO ayepealn | As|eA |equad SS cLevie
; peoy (oyuaweloeg)
26’ 06.820001LHAM | LOOLOLOBYYS 109¥6€ oug|og 02956 uoxig ¥oupad 5169 amd Ao uoxia JLMMUOXIT | 510 n [eUsD SS 96€022
: uinbeor peoy (ouswennes)
e 1958Z000LHAM | L00LOLOBESS | Ziv0PL ues 02€56 uojeas3y 1oAY 1SOM 00152 Ao uojeoas3 JuE|d JuBulESl| Uoledsy folleA [eausd S§ 916222
; peoy (cjusweloeg)
Sl 929150001LAdN LO0E0L0S08S 66452V seleAele] | 6¥Z56 | Sealpuy ues ¥EO PIOS §/9 s sealpuy ueg d1MM OS sealpuy ueg AalieA [eUsD SS 081852
SlH peoy ousia (ojusweioes)
¥ 81L915000LAdN | 50020106095 gg€esZy | opeloa |3 | 29166 opesog 3 sqone] Gzoy uoneBlu| opesoq 3 dLMM SIItH OPBIOQ 1T | (5104 |eijuan SS yeveee
asw ai
a’i leqoio pieog # ai
mo|4 1943011099 aiam ainseapy Aunoo diz Ao SSaippy awepN Aouaby awepN Ayjioeq jeuciBay uoifisy | Anjoey
ubBisaq Bay
(SMLOJ) SHHOM LNIALYIYL AANMO AT21M1ENd LY STONVLSENS TANTVORONTIATOd ANY-43d 40 IONISIHd 3HL 40 NOILYNINYEIL3d
JHL HO4 Y3AYO €8EEL/L92EL NOLLOIS 3A0D HILVM
S3ILNIDVL 40 1817 - 2 INSNHOVLLY
0z0Z ‘6 AInp DMA-5100-0202 OM ¥30H0




6€ 40 0l 39vd

peoy
9t 65€SE000LHAM | LO09L1L0OSLE9 SLyorL wiay §G5¢€6 ayeT] eulyd X0Uuy "N pue Ang 1s@i006piy 1sa108bpry uejuoye” 9 §56925¢
peoy auri ajod
. oulpieulag anlug pag
S'v | 81£42000LMAM | 100L0L0O9ESY | ZéY.eY ues L1£26 MOISIEE | o0sianny 3 0022 Ruo moISIeE | o anefopy JLM MOISIEG uejoye | - 9 | 692802
. 9ECYEY saye pAaIg
2T | ZGBEEO00LHAM | LOOEOLOOZES | ooot) ouoN  9VSE6 |  iowwepy|  vepue gio) | PUISIO HOTEM powLIE d1S aMD Ylowwenw uejuoyel| 9 | €8Z6£T
sajabuy d @nuaAy pue 3 0Z PU}sIg uolejues we|d
Gl | /£20£000L¥GM | 690.0L06189 | v60Z8E 07 055€6 3lBPWIEd | o0 o ot 006 | A1unon sepeBuy SOT | UONEWeIoeY JojeM Sleplled ueouel| 9 | 8vvivZ
sajebuy g anuaAy 1 JoU)SI] UoleHUES ueld
8l 68L0C000LHAM | £L0£0L06189 | bPOZEL it vESES Isyseouer] 155/ 5981 AiUnon sejeBuy SO | UOHBLWEsY JSIEM, Ie1SEIUET] ueoue | 9 | BLE9ET
. oulpieulag aAlQ 12us) 1510 81BN BIIIAIOIDIA
Sz 0889€000LHAM | 100L1609€99 0€9t6e ueg Z26€26 B|INOIA N EYERL Ao alInoiIN A LMM [BIU8D VIO uejuoye 9 08vL¥.L
foyiny uoneweoay
oulpieulsg d.lA Altoyiny uoneweoay
8l 8/89€0001LHAM | 10060109€99 | 06E00¥ ues ¥6£26 8|0l | peoy Aeys L110Z hw_y_mﬂm”ﬂw_% 151EMaISEM AB|IBA JOIA uejuoye 9 61¥0.2
Kuoyiny uoljeweday
oulpleusag eladsaH
l 9/89E000LHAOM | G00.0609€89 | 0ZELLE ues SYEZ6 euadsaH | 1S aAeloN 6921 mww_”anm% JUBId [BUOIBEH-GNS “HAAA uejouye | 9 | €0619.
Auoyiny uoijeweoay
oulpJeusag ; Aa|lep ajddy
A
L S§289€0001LHAM | 900.20609E89 LeeLle ues L0E26 o|leA o|ddy | peoy @010 Z1L0LZ MM.M”JNM% Ul [BUoIBEY-GNS WHAMAA uejuoyen] 9 £16194
: aALQ fouaby uonejues JUB|d UOljBWEDaY
96 LE6YE000LHAM | 000410062V 0lzZiel EpEASN 19196 aajoni| plalaNng 02251 89)oNi 1 -90UR L 131 A3l SIEN uejuoye 9 0¥8292
. §LGG.E aoye] aAu( 1s81) JUB|d JuaLLjeal |
Ll G8LPE000LHAM | €00800L20VY | . 665281 opeioQ 13 | 05196 a%e] ynog MOPEA G/ZL and eeyel ynos OIEMOISEAM ANdLS uejuoyen 9 0£Z652
. jeals ueld
9L | ¥60/Z000LHAM | LOOLOLOPLEY | OLL8YL ohu| 156 doysig SUIT M 228 Ao doysig | o ey abemag doysig uejuoyel| 9 | 299602
LLL
euia 1
v | 1o8oz0001MaM | 10050869289 | 8SIZEE | O e | LOEZ6|  OweispY | xo8'0'dieeas| g Sy diMmonepy | ueouel| 9 | Sivb0z
11N 2Nand Olue|spyY
ueyjeuor Lole6l
uinbeor 9snoH peoy Aueyleg (ojuswesoes)
€ PLYOYO00LHAM | €008/016€8S | vivoLy ues L6£S6 GO won colz | G5O @SNOH weluo LM 8SNOH UBINOW | g0 o\ "o o | S§ | 86GLYE
‘ £GOzZEeY uinbeor ANUAAY 3JLLSSOA Aioed jonuo) | (ojuswesnes)
186 | ZYESYO0OLHAM | LOOFOLOGEES | <roonn, ues 1£€56 eoajuep 1S9/ 0GHZ Ao ORI | o A BoBIUER J0 KD | Asiiep lenuen | S | EVEBET
; ¥Z pecy Ajipoed jonuon | (ocjusweides)
v'0L | 98YBE000LMAM | LOOSOLOLSYS | E¥98BE OlOA | 91456 PUEIPOOA unos 6262 RUO PUBIPOOM | 1h04 ssiem pueipoom | Asiiea fenusn | SS | 096248
anuaAy Ulalsap {ousweloes)
L £809€0001LHAM | LOOELLOOSOS S660¥% L Sne|siuels | 98ES6 piopsiep uInos e Ay propiaiepy dLMM PiopaIEM LalleA [euaD SS 9egLle
welis
8L | S665€000LMQM | LO0SOLOLEVS | L0Z9Zv | J90Bld | Lp/G6|  oliAesOy | PEOy I0OE 008L Ao elinesoy atmm e ki | (MRS g | g9s0z2
m__.w___“___ ai leqolo E.._mh._o Auno dy £ ssal awepN Asuab awep Ajl|1oe pieog # ai
ol il aiam W 5 1z k) PPY N v N fynoeq jeuoiBey | uoiBey | Aynoes
ubisag Boy
(SMLOd) SHHOM LNIWLYIHL AINMO AT2178Nd 1V STFONVLSENS TANTVOHONTIATOd ANY-H3d 40 JONISTH IHL 40 NOILYNIWSEIL3A
JHL HO4 ¥3AQY0 £8€€L/29¢€1L NOILDO3S 3A00 H3LVM
S3ILIMIOV4L 40 1S11 - T INIWHOVLLY
020Z ‘s AInp OMA-5100-0202 DM H3AH0




6¢€ 40 LI 39vd

€% | S191S000LAdN | LLOLOLOELYL | 626/2p | leusdwl | Lezze|  ooxeled |  peoyised g6z Ao ooeleD dimmoomereg jo uo | UTEISEE L, gecziz
8501 %08 '0'd 25 o
S | osz6zooordam | 10soLoeevs | 9usz8t | episiomd | ggzze | elieweog | S90LIE O I3 qm Aellen eeuseon 8G# 1510 AOJAWI AMAD opeomy| L | stz
8L | ¥98620001HAM | ZLOSOLOEEVZ | €00Zp | opisieny | L1zg6 | sbuuds wied 4005 000ty | M AIIEA Elf2Y9E0D OL# d¥M Hesaq wied waony| ¢ |ewave
sbuuds ousIg 18ArY
b | LZEEO00LNAM | ZLOBOLOSEVL | 680SGE | OPISIOAN | OVEZ6 | o acac | BUOMOALOIYL | o <6iiide uosem LM UOHOH uery opeoma| L |oL8voz
. anusAy 18AY
G'0L | GEGZEOOOLMAM | ZLOVLLOEEV. | E08LBE | aPisIaA | p9zze | sbundswied | ) poo e op Mg sBundg wied 41mMm sBundg wied opeiojon | 4 | SEVLE
y oulpJeulag anug Rauaby pM i oAy
ze | L68,2000LMaM | 11000L09EVL | eezi0r | URESSR [ yiezs | AIDIOBBE | (o re | euciboy con aa | AN SUROTTYMM B2 88 opeiopy | L | 0£6802
: Rempeolig sanIoe] UoNeWEDay 18AY
¥Z | £22/20001HOM | Z10Z0L0geaL | 9zzL0v | episieny | s2zz6 suMig Wil s Ao owhig P e opeioog | L | Lvseoz
9t | Z0Z/Z000LMOM | GLOOOMOEEVZ | 62ZL0V | PISIONM | 02226 Buuueg | 1928 SHEIO Aup Buuueg dLMM Buiuueg Jo G410 ool 4| 89980z
fsan . 1583 Zvee o : . 0pe:000
JoAl
UL | Zv915000LQdN | LbOZOLOELVL | 8v0Zoy | leusdw| |gezze|  eujedied | peoy Aespurt 9oL Ao euediied dLMM AN euedijed suops| & |06
198115 131y
L | 5.515000L0dN | L60SOLOEEVL | LivELy | SPISIOAN | £/226 BUWIBUL | o Zongg | OMAGIEA BISUIE0D | dLMM M Aelien elleuoe0D opesoea| L |ovwerz
VLVeZY PEGY elioyonig oAy
8 | vzZ5lS00010dN | LioeoLOglvL | YE7OCY | jewedwi | epzze|  onued 3 s Ay 058D 13 dLMM A0 03u80 13 opeicpn| & |40V
. 19815 1BAY
§'8 | 2251S000L0dN | 1Z0ZZLOEEVL | ZEELOF | opisioAR | L0ZZ6 OPUL | oing uen oeay | 1PUISIO Aieliues Aaiien dLAMM a8 Aallen opeiopg | L | 9800z
JaAl
9 | L0SLS000LGdN | LLOOOLOSLY. | 66.66¢ | leusdwl | .z2z6 fomeig | peoy 153 510G Ao Ropesg dLMM A Asimelg s | L |zEoE
: JEENTS E]
¥l | £6V1S000LOJN | LLOSOLOSLYZ | 166Z0¢ | fewsdwi | 15ZZ6 euadwy | SSE Ao feuedu) LA A4D feuadul opeiopn | L | L62eEz
JaAl
¥'Z | Z9.6Z000VHQM | TLOPOLOSEY. | 2SG00F | OPISIARY | 96226 |  BlISU9e0D | bG aNUBAY §L0/8 as elieyoeo) dLMM @S Elleuoe0 opoang| L | eeovie
%
Z | 1951500010dN | L00VSSIBLYY | Lzzoge | uessel |oglgs | emauesng| PO CSTPM | s josuoo ewnuesns asoelimuesng | uewouel| o | 68gese
L | S6£0£000LMAM | 20010109289 | ZSLovL | OUOW  |6Zges|  eNelaunt| o n SO0 and exe euny dLS and 9¥eT sunp vewoue1| o | ezivez
'L | 169620001 HAM | L008LI05LE9 | 9v0B¥L | Uiy | 56566 | ANO BILIOJIED | G UOSIeN GEBOL | ANO BILIOIED 10 A1) 4LM A0 eluiopien uejoue1| g | eroziz
zL | seeicooordam | Looriiieeds | ziosoy | CPENPE | zpeze | erepusren | PEOY SIPPUSISH QSO lepusIoH | dLS SOYELeAIS elepusleH vewoue1| 9 | LLooez
ues pUE PEOX PIM .
1)
[T\ | 9E6SE000LMAM | L00ZLLOSLEY | Evsszy | wey  [o09ges | puowesoy| oo OOM SO puowesoy | (spuod) 41M PuowEsOy vewoue1| 9 | e6zese
EE
v | 06S0E000LHOM | LOOZ0LOSEEY | SEBLOE | oo o |25626| © o oyew| ~ O00LXOB'O'd|  SSOISS AWUNWLIOD | LM OSO PEBUMOLY 9e] velouel| o | 18L9ez
peaymoLy axe
mws_ ai 1eqoio ..:M_._mw Auno di A ssal awepN Aosusb awepn Ajjioe pieog # a
Ol | oioei osg aiam e o | dz 19 PPY N AousBy N Atioe ot | o | Rukowst

(SMLOd) SHHOM LNIWLYIHL AINMO AT2118Nd LV SFONVLSENS TANTYOHONTIATOd ANY-43d 40 IONISIHd IHL 40 NOILYNINYIL3A
JHL HO4d ¥30aHO0 €8EEL/L92€1 NOILOAS 3A0D Y3 LVYM
SALLITIOVL 40 LS11 - 2 LINIWHOVLLY

0zoz ‘6 AInp OMA-5100-0202 OM J30H0



6€ 40 ¢l 39vd

peoy uofuen

1810 Jalepm [edidiuniy

JHMM

€1 | /2€820001MAM | €00ZZIZEES | Z080VL | OPISISNY | ZEGZ6 | BIOUSH BYET| oo o oo o oEvsoe|  sRempemranens)  EVERS| B | Zigese
IS
9 | /52820001MOM | 100ZS9E0E® | 12Oy | BURIO | £99z6 | SHeunbel| o SRS | puisigseiemoioL 3| AUMMISIQeleMOOL 3| euvees | g | 4L
. ouipieulag aAlg Fouaby AAM
Z€ | 006/Z000LHAM | L00BOLO9ES | LL0OL6Z ues | 7veze ieag Big oikiioiB pz) | [EucBey very seed 61 JdMMleeg Big | euyewes| g | 18L65Z
)
14 9€9150001AdN L00LOLOEE 8 859/8€ apisiaAly | LOEC6 juowneag Wy umm..ﬂ, mwm Ao juowneag L "ON dLMM luouineag euy ejueg 8 0i165¢
. ouipiewlag anuaAy euy
L'l 2€9150001ddN L0021 L09€E 8 v.E18E ueg 9L£Z6 | uolbuiwoolg ejUES 18T 105 Ao onery JdMM Ollery euy ejueg 8 67165¢
2 peoy uohued usIq
8G'L | 8Z9LS000LOdN | LOOSSZZEE® | LZ98BE | OPISIOA | £0826 BUOIOD | bocouie) opazz | Jotem Aalien [eosoway | UMM QM AelleA feasews) | euyewes | 8 | 91265C
peoy 1810 J8iepn [edouniy
8 619150001ddN LOOZLLOEE 8 GG6L.LE BpISIBAlY | LEGZE | iouls|3 8xen PUEMILIS 03671 AalleA 2Jouis|g JdMM [euoiBay AMINAT euy ejueg 8 12652
oulpleulag U7 aur Psig ]
8 20915000LQdN | 100222298 | 09.08€ g | 02826 |  Eesewwed | oo ool oemAeienedieony | TUMMZIOUWOOM NAUSH |  euyeues| 8 | 191652
oulpieuiag anuaay Kouaby
58 £5GL5000LQdN | LOOBIBZIES | E6EVGE ues 80L16 OUND | guoydeal osevt | sonimn exdwg puejy; | UMM UoAuED uogied N3l euyeues | 8§ | ¥8L6SZ
Ajuoyiny Jajemalsepn
14" 12515000LAdN LOOESECEE 8 18296¢€ apisianly | 08826 BuoI0) PY 18nlY tESYL [euoiBay AUNoD | UMM [BUOIBEY YMHIHM BUY BjueS 8 502652
OpISIBAIY UIBISAMN
§'LL | S0SLS000LOAN | LODBOLOSE® | £L988E | SPISIeAR | 08926 000 | s et dMa Ao euoiod b dummeuoon | euyeues| g | LLL6SZ
, oulpJewag oulpieuiag aodeld ydaq Jeyep [edidiungy
&Y | 667LS000LOdN | €00PLLO9EB | Z998LF ueg | 80VZ6 i soppueys gee | Ao oupieuseg ueg | JUMMSIPUBUD Hiateblew | euyewes| g | 022652
ouipleulag peoy esuep YaMELLY X
OF | 96¥L5000LAdN | 100S/EZ9€8 | 8S9Z6E es | ¥eEeB uo09 enby 061 | ouipseuleg Ues/UCHDD | ‘dLS oulpieuIRg UES/UOYOD euyeles | g | 8/165Z
o 9.¥1S0001AdN £00.1L10EE 8 $509.€ apIsIdAlY | ¥0SC6 BpISIBAlY | 198415 UWIoDY (S65 A0 apisianty UMM AID apisianry BUY BlUES 8 051652
yoeag 1S
zZee 298150001LAdN 20001 100€ 8 L6.98€ abueip 9¥9Z6 uolbununy | 1sinujoolg ZLZZZ aso ebueip Z uejld dsO0 BUY ejueg 8 851652
fa
FA%N £90250001ddN 20001L00€ 8 16498€ abueiQ 80,26 :_ME“__MD aAY sl #¥801L aso ebueig L ueld asoo BUy EJUBS 8 26€£852
- UOSIapuesg ISNERPEETY
6vlL £€2820001LHAM LOOEBLCEE B 98EPSE APISIBAlY | 28526 ojuder ueg UMON 022 [edipiuniy uiayses 4HMH £8]|eA ojuper ueg BUy BjUES 8 £6165¢2
10LISIJ 91BN
0 229820001 :AaM 100€8L2EE B 98EPGE apisianly | 04526 Slad | peOY ase) LOEL jedpiunpy Wayses JHMY ABeA sliad Buy ejueg 8 602652
: anug PuIsIg
G'€E | 8Y6LS000LAdN | 20090020€8 | 281Z0F | @buei | Z1926 S | omeunzlee R UMM UospURIN | euyees| g | 95165
Zi | v0SEE000LHOM | LOOLL09EL | sezooy | ol T | egeze solposN | Aempeoig 915 A0 selpesN dimmsepean | RS 4 | ogorve
m,w._u ai ieqolo alam o..:m...hmi Aunon dr F,5TEe ssalpp aweN Aouaby awep Aj1oe4 pieog # ai
la)oel] 09 74 : v e |euo|Bay uolbay | Ajpoey
ubisaq bBoy
(SMLOd) SHHOM LNIWLYIHL AINMO A12118Nd LV SIONVLSENS TANTVOHONTIATOd ANV-43d 40 FONISIHd FHL 40 NOILVYNINE313d
JHL Y04 ¥3A-0 £8EEL/L92EL NOILO3S 300D H3LVM
S3LLINIDVL 40 1817 - Z AINJWHOVLLY
0202 ‘6 AInp DMA-5100-0202 OM H3AHO




6¢ 40 €1 39vd

vZZ | LvLSZ00DVMOM | L00SB/ZEER | 98EVSE | episiemn | 06sZ6 |  enoswel| oo o (PRECY i et JuMy Aollenemoewiey | obeigues | & | swieoz
8 | 190Z5000L0dN | 0800000006 | bSiSZ | OBeIOUES | 60026 |  PRASHED | g coas| e | emopcon o soran | oBaques| 6 | 6866z
8L9E | 0BLSE000IMAM | S.10000006 | 919vee | BUEi0 |2928| Curouce|  eoougeer| e veeomong duMEINbINO-OMINS | oBeigues | 6 | 8ISLSE
898 | 1981S000L0dN | SLL0000006 | 8L9¥BE | OBUEID | 67026 | IUOdEURd |OdSMORAZSHE|  Lan Lseromond dMMmuweyel|  ofeiques| 6 | 6v99sz
88 | ¥YZSE000LHAM | £LLO000006 | 629v8E | eBueio | 1,926 oo | PHZed B11026 | yo01s osi on dl leuolbey yMOOS | obeiques | 6 | 50442
/£'ve | BY6LS000LdN | £LL0000006 | 629v8E | oBuelD | 81926 oup | S IO | i oo dumsosily so1amyll | oBeigues | 6 | 96£Lez
92¢ | 90ZZE000LHAM | 9¥40000006 | zizuie | obelques |gsoze| episueacn | oo FERE A0 9pISUEE0 e e ed | obeiques| 6 | zeesse
92Z | 65025000L0dN | 9¥10000006 | 2iziie | oBeIQuUES |vS0Z6 |  OPISUESI0 | o o el KD PISUBR00 | 1 v ‘qumn e o9 | 0020 UES | 6 | 610982
gL | 9998200014QM | 1E00000006 | L..0Zy | OBSIQUES | 62026 |  OPIPUODS3 SR RO OPIPUOST | o0 oe o et e | 0070 YeS | 6 | seezz
9 | 5vzse000LaM | L¥S0000006 | €062yl | 9BuelD | 6926 et ol N, Do umagy | UM UoUeY uosuiqoy MOL | obeigues | 6 | 96zez
9 | 966LS000LdN | 1¥S0000006 | £06zvl | eBuein | 6,926 B st | s dlMUsioD OMOL|  oBeiques| 6 | ge6zez
9 | 981GE000LMAM | L¥S0000006 | £0BZyL | 9BUBID | Z69Z6 | OFIA LOISSIN | PY Zed B 40ZLZ N el dYM %9810 050 AMIWS | oBaiques | 6 | 025.62
Sl | 6802500010N | LOOBLGZIES | E6EVE | upg o | OLLLG WD | cqunrsenn | soumn oxdus oy | § ONWeid Wb 31| euyewes | 8 | 691652
vl | seszs0001aan | Loosrezees | seeves | *Pen® [ezuis| U uman s eS| n oudun e | P ONIEd [euoBoy vN3I | euyewes| 8 | velzn
vv | 8802S000LGdN | LOOBLGZIES | EGEVEE | O ea © | LOLLE eI | puopeiia s | sopmun oudun ooy | b ONIUEld luoBed vl | euvewes| 8 | 591652
L | v8YLSO00LOAN | L0D9.VZEE® | ZESEE | OPISIOMY | £8876 euoiog | Peot I8/LeD dMa Ao euoi0D g MMM EUOI0D | euyeues| g | p/L6SE
L | veoscooorsiam | toostioses | ossser | “iea® (28626 | ponins | weid somes poes | oiom sbuudg Buing | dLMM sBuuds Buuuny | ewyewes| 8 | 091652
2 | sescooornam | tooriroses | sgovrl | P9 esezs | spuewen| o PO KD spuelpay JUMM SPuepey | euvees| 8 | 8yi6se
SU'L | £28550001MOM | 1006652988 | pervee | a0 12628  CPRR | sl | v oo ees | dLMM UMON Y0 9l euyewes [ g | 9808v9
€ | 6.96200014OM | L00I8IZEER | LyOblE | oPIsieny | 6826 suding | gt dMa AuD eu0I0) z# SUMmeEUoi0D | euyewes| g | €L1652
§0Z | €L982000LMOM | LOOESLZEES | 98EPSE | OPISIONY | 15526 L T I e JuMmy Aollep oussow | euvewes| g | £ozese
:mmmn , %__u_wmpoﬂ"wo aiam EMM.WE funon diz Ao ssalppy aweN Asusby awep Apjioey _wﬂ_nw_mmm G o_w oy _a—__n__hm 4
(SMLOd) SYHOM LNIWLYIHL GINMO ATOITENd LY STONVLSENS TANTYOHONTIATOd ONV-¥3d S0 FONISId IHL 40 NOLLYNIWYILIA
HL ¥O4 ¥3AHO £88€1/292€1 NOILD3IS 3000 HILYM
S3ILIIOVA 40 1ST1 - Z INGWHOVLLY
0202 '6 ANt DMA-5100-0202 DM 3O



6¢ 40 ¥1 39vd

SE'L | 0Z9/E000LMAM | £200000006 | 669v0v | oBaiques |g90z6 |  euowey . o amw euowey dimmenenees | ofaiques| 6 | 6,952
(senmn oand)
sl | 8r6se000L¥aM | 0060000006 | OBI8YL | oBeigues |vsize | obaidues | o c00 b8 el dumAegunos | obagues| 6 | Lessse
Ay obaig ues
(sammn a1gnd)
d
09 | 9v6SE000LMAM | 0£L0000006 | 851Z0p | OBOIQUES | Zize| OBeIAUES |  jipcom aidd v dumAouoN | obaiques| 6 | 9osvre
Ao obeiq ues
. EVETE ) 3/0 UEadQ %8310
8,86 | Y8BSE000LMAM | SLL0000006 | 62620v | @BueiD | Z2926 tno | ooidepueny 0ge | 21X PPONND | dumewewsp ues jo A0 | obaiques| 6 | 812952
lenbiy Amd as() Jalepn
9 | Z6156000LMOM | 1750000006 | 9620y | ebueio | 1926 ambes S vyl dLIe1Se0D YMO0S | obeigues| & | 098252
lenbin oueysiden as( Jalem
9 | 98156000LMAM | LbSO000006 | £06ZvL | 9buelD | 1,926 it I o P sl Jelduswieall ve | ofaigues| 6 | vSoLbZ
. anuany Ajpoeq
SZ'§ | 5L0SE000LHOM | 5210000006 | £iSpl | obaiques | L0026 |  sewuud | oo o HCY | 519MOg IO OIS UBS | ooy e olig ueg | 00O UES| 6 | 992652
&1 |ziszeo00iuam | 2120000006 | gezl0v | obeiques | 8616 | Avllenbuuds | g o QMAABIO | dumuewdeyd muded|  obaigues| 6 | 8v6lsz
Remsied eues IS JTEM Aiioe 5
z | 90vZe000LMAM | ZPS0000006 | c06ZvL | obelques | 12026 oojues e oy | mg secupts| bwpkssgmmmeciog ey oo & | e
>
9L | ¥2£2£0001MOM | L/£0000006 | bSLlOp | oBaiques | szize| oBeigues | P OOl oo JuMuueNsy|  obaques| 6 | 119202
pPsisey seuppuy 6
o | 229620001H0M | 6260000006 | FILSCY | oBaiques | 60026 |  PeAsWED | Lo oo QMW PedspeD Jumpeqspes | obeques| 6 | oszele
%
L | 8307500010dN | 000000006 | bSLGZy | OBOIOUES | 600Z6 |  PEASHED | nuevecoza|  solemersem eubuy ddo¥meupuz | obeiques | 6 | 8s.ezz
: JoonS SEiIY PUIsIQ eid
LT | 088820001MAM | §1L0000006 | 09.l0v | obeiques |gzoze |  Sooudired oty | milsd e S| M| € |uswee
{senimn onand)
peoy daq Je1emaisem Mo}
0v2 | PLSIS000LOAN | 520000006 | 886vLy | oBeigues |goize | oBaldues| .0 b doodonen | ues00 3 diMM ewoT0g | 96%aues| & [ essere
A obeig ueg
Rep uonoesg
5z | Z6vIS000LOdN | 280000006 | 2S0.6¢ | oBelques |vlze | oBeiaues | oo lER e g | dLM [evoleweil Aeg uinos | oBeigues | 6 | 128452
asm ai
ai leqoio : pieog # a
:Mo_"_ JoyoeIL 099 aiam ainsea funosn diz Ao ssalppy awepN Aouaby awenN Ajjioed JeuoiBey uoiBey | Aunoed
1saq Bay
(SMLOJ) SYHOM LNIWLYIHL AINMO ATOIEN LV STONVASENS TANTVOHONTHATOd ANY-¥3d 40 FONISTd FHL 40 NOLLYNINY3L3A
3HL 404 ¥3QYO £8EE€1/29Z€ 1 NOILOAS 3A0D ¥ILYM
S3ILMIOVA 40 1S - Z INFWHOVLLY
0z0z ‘6 AIne

DMA-5100-020C OM ¥3AHO




ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020
Attachment 3

ATTACHMENT 3
TECHNICAL SAMPLING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

WATER CODE SECTION 13267/13383 ORDER FOR THE
DETERMINATION OF THE PRESENCE OF PER-AND POLYFLUOROALKYL SUBSTANCES AT
PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT WORKS (POTWs)

Content:

A. Justification
B. Sampling and Analysis Requirements
C. Reporting Requirements

California Water Code Section 13267b (1) requires a written explanation of the need for reports and
the evidence that supports requiring the reports. This justification is provided in Section A. The
technical requirements for this Order include Sampling and Analysis (Section B) and Reporting
(Section C). Section B describes the general sampling and analysis requirements with specifics
about the types and frequency of sample collection for the POTW and groundwater monitoring wells.
Groundwater monitoring well sampling is only required for those POTWs with an existing groundwater
monitoring program approved by the Regional Board. Section C describes the reports required for
the submittal of completed sampling and analysis conducted pursuant to Section B, below. Section D
requires a questionnaire to be completed for each POTW by the responsible agency. The completed
questionnaire provides various information about the processes of the POTW, including wastewater
and biosolids — commonly associated with the presence of PFAS at POTWs, based on recent studies
across the US and the world.

A. JUSTIFICATION

Studies being conducted across the nation are linking consumer and industrial use of PFAS-
containing materials, including disposal of landfill leachate and firefighting foam, to PFAS results in
the influent and effluent discharge at POTWs. Two examples are provided below based on a
January 2020 POTW study in Vermont and a 2014 study performed in the San Francisco (SF) Bay
Area in California.

The State of Vermont's recently published January 2020 results' indicate widespread presence of
PFAS at their POTWSs. Sampling and analysis were performed from 1) landfill leachate at four
landfills and 2) POTW influent, effluent, and sludge, and septage at 30 POTWs. Some of the key
take-aways from this report are:

1 2020. Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances at Wastewater Treatment Facilities and Landfill
Leachate — 2019 Summary Report. Weston & Sampson. January 30.
(https://dec.vermont.qgov/sites/dec/files/iwmp/SolidWaste/Documents/02.03.20 PFAS%20in%20LF %2
0and%20WWTF %20Final%20Report.pdf)

PAGE 15 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020
Attachment 3

« PFAS are present in all landfill leachate (correlates to data being reported from statewide
PFAS Orders sent to California landfills in March 2019)

« PFAS are also present in all POTW influent, effluent, and sludge tested.

« Reductions in PFAS concentrations between influent and effluent samples implies sorption
to sludges may be occurring.

« Concentrations of PFAS “replacement” compounds exceed the concentrations of the
original compounds of PFOA and PFOS.

« Correlations between leachate and sludges (includes biosolids) were challenged by
analytical method limitations and collection of uniform percent solid samples.

In California, wastewater effluent samples were collected from eight POTWs in 2009 and 2014 that
discharge into the SF Bay2. All samples contained PFAS among the 20 compounds analyzed. The
study summarized that PFAS concentrations were about the same in the effluent since the 2009
sampling efforts except for two POTWs where the effluent concentrations were significantly higher
since 2009 suggesting recent contributions from PFAS in the POTW's influent.

B. SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS REQUIREMENTS
1. General Sampling and Analysis Requirements

a. Samples and measurements taken as required herein shall be representative of the
volume and nature of the monitored discharge per their existing monitoring and
reporting program. All samples shall be taken at the monitoring locations specified
below and, unless otherwise specified, before the monitored flow joins or is diluted
by any other waste stream, body of water, or substance.

b. Samples of the influent and effluent from the treatment system shall be a 24-hour
composite for each sample. When using a composite sampler, information on the
type of tubing used must be provided. Fluoropolymer tubing, parts, valves, and
other parts should be avoided. Preferable materials include high-density,
polyethylene (HDPE), polypropylene, silicone, stainless steel, nylon, PVC, and
acetate. Equipment that contains fluoropolymer parts can be used if those parts
are internal to the equipment and does not contact the sample. If a composite
sampler is used that has fluoropolymer parts, then an equipment blank sample
must be collected for each composite sampler used and analyzed for PFAS to
determine the potential contribution by the sampler of fluoropolymers in the sample.

c. For POTWs that also sample effluent after advanced treatment to meet a Surface
Water Source Augmentation Project (SWSAP) (California Code of Regulations
Title 22 Sections 60320.300 through 60320.330), the sample location specified in

2 2016. Poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances in wastewater: Significance of unknown precursors,
manufacturing shifts, and likely AFFF impacts. Erika F. Houtz, Rebecca Sutton, June-Soo Park,
Margaret Sedlak. Water Research, Volume 95, 15 May 2016, Pages 142-149.

PAGE 16 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020
Attachment 3

this Order can be the same location of the representative sample collected of the
recycled municipal wastewater in the SWSAP.

d. Influent samples shall be taken from locations prior to primary settling, which
include but are not limited to the headworks of the inlet to the grit chamber or prior
to any biological treatment. Samples shall be collected at such a point and in such
a manner to ensure a representative sample of influent containing all wastes
accepted by the facility prior to any treatment.

e. Effluent samples shall be taken following completion of all treatment processes and
prior to mixing with the receiving waters. (i.e., surface water, groundwater, or
ocean). Samples shall be collected at such a point and in such a manner to ensure
a representative sample of the discharge. For POTWs that also sample effluent
per Title 22 requirements, the effluent sample mentioned in this Order may be
taken at the same location.

If, following completion of treatment, the effluent is placed into storage pond(s) and
not discharged into receiving waters, , then the effluent sample shall be collected
from the treatment system discharge following completion of treatment and prior to
the entering the effluent storage pond(s).

f. Sample of the reverse osmosis concentrate/retentate shall be collected via grab
sample method and must be representative of the volume and nature of the
discharge.

g. Appropriate flow measurement devices and methods consistent with accepted
scientific practices shall be selected and used to ensure the accuracy and reliability
of measurements of the volume of monitored discharges. All monitoring
instruments and devices used by the responsible agency to fulfill the prescribed
monitoring program shall be properly maintained and calibrated as necessary, at
least yearly, to ensure their continued accuracy. All flow measurement devices
shall be calibrated at least once per year to ensure continued accuracy of the
devices.

h. Sampling for biosolids after all treatment processes have been completed shall be
made either prior to or post biosolids harvesting for dewatering and disposal/reuse.
Samples may be collected from biosolids storage ponds, biosolids drying beds,
post-processing storage piles or other similar points after processing and prior to
disposal/reuse. When reporting the data, the concentrations of PFAS in the
sample as provided to the laboratory and the percent moisture shall be reported.
Also include the class of biosolids sampled in the report. A representative whole
sample aliquot (both fractions) will be collected, analyzed by the laboratory, and
reported in nanograms per kilogram.

i. Sample results from liquid samples shall be reported in units of nanograms per liter
(ng/L). Sample results for biosolids shall be reported in units of nanograms per
kilogram (ng/kg).

PAGE 17 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020

Attachment 3

j.

Monitoring results shall be reported at intervals and in a manner specified below in
Section C.2 and C.3.

A laboratory providing sample analyses must hold a valid certificate of accreditation
from the State of California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program
(ELAP) for the analytes selected in Table 1 in compliance with Department of
Defense (DoD) Table B-15 of Quality Systems Manual (QSM), dated 2017, version
5.1 or later. The laboratory must be capable of achieving the quality control/quality
assurance requirements specified in Table B-15 of the DoD QSM, version 5.1 or
later. The DoD QSM can be found at: https://denix.osd.mil/edgw/documents/ as
well as on the State Water Board’s PFAS informational website:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/pfas/background.html/.

A list of laboratories that are accredited by ELAP can be found on the State Water
Board's PFAS webpage: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/pfas/.

Analytical reporting limits for sample matrices can be found on the Water Board's PFAS
webpage: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/pfas/ (under non-drinking water tab, then
Documents folder).

PFAS sample collection protocol shall follow the guidance located at:
https://www .waterboards.ca.gov/pfas/docs/march_pfas sampling guidelines.pdf.

Collection of biosolid samples shall follow U.S. EPA’s Sampling Procedures and
Protocols for the National Sewage Sludge Survey located at:
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-

04/documents/nsss1988 sampling_procedures.pdf

2. Treatment System Sampling Locations and Frequencies

a. For POTWs with average dry weather design flows of five mgd or greater:

i. Sampling shall commence with the Fourth Quarter 2020 sampling period
(October-December 2020).

i. Sampling and analysis for PFAS of the POTW influent, effluent, and reverse
osmosis concentrate/retentate shall occur quarterly for a one-year period.

iii. Biosolids shall be sampled to determine its PFAS and moisture content quarterly
for a one-year period.

b. For POTWs with average dry weather design flows less than five mgd, but greater

than or equal to one mgd:

i. Sampling shall commence with the Fourth Quarter 2020 sampling period
(October-December 2020).

PAGE 18 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020
Attachment 3

ii. Sampling and analysis for PFAS of the POTW influent, effluent, and reverse
osmosis concentrate/retentate shall occur quarterly for a one-year period.

iii. Biosolids shall be sampled to determine its PFAS and moisture content once
during the first year of this Order.

3. Groundwater Monitoring Well Sampling and Analysis

a. One-time groundwater monitoring for PFAS is required for POTWs with existing
groundwater monitoring and reporting programs under an order (e.g., monitoring
and reporting program) issued by the State or Regional Board.

b. Within 60-days prior to conducting the first groundwater monitoring event, the
responsible agency shall provide to the appropriate Regional Water Board the
following information:

i. A figure of the groundwater monitoring well network, groundwater flow
direction, and indicate of the monitoring wells proposed to be sampled.

ii. Rationale for the selection of the groundwater monitoring wells to be used
for representative sampling for PFAS. A minimum of three wells in the
upper water bearing zone shall be selected.

i. After the Regional Board approves the PFAS groundwater monitoring
proposal, monitoring shall commence during the next groundwater monitoring
period as specified in the POTWSs existing groundwater monitoring and reporting
program but no sooner than the Fourth Quarter 2020 sampling period
(October-December 2020).

ii. The PFAS analytes mentioned in Section B.1.j will be analyzed from the samples
collected from selected groundwater monitoring wells once within the first year of
implementation of this order.

c. The collection of samples shall comply with the standard operating procedures for
sample collection established for the existing groundwater monitoring program
(including the field parameters and general chemistry parameters in Table 2 of this

Attachment) and supplemented by the PFAS-specific adjustments required under
Section B.1.1.

C. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
1. General Reporting Requirements

a. All documentation, including but not limited to, the groundwater monitoring
proposal, reports (treatment sampling and analysis and/or groundwater analysis)

PAGE 19 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020
Attachment 3

and analytical reports must be uploaded into GeoTracker via the Electronic
Submittal of Information (ESI) Portal, as stipulated by California State law
(California Code of Regulations Title 23, Division 3, Chapter 30). The groundwater
monitoring proposal and final report must be submitted in a searchable portable
document format (pdf) with transmittal letter, text, tables, figures, laboratory
analytical data, and appendices (one PDF for the entire report) as well as analytical
data in electronic data deliverable (EDD) format.

Instructions on how to log into GeoTracker and upload reports and documents into
the ESI portal is available at:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ust/electronic_submittal/index.html. Step by step
instructions are provided in the ESI Guide for Responsible Parties under the
“Getting Started” section of this webpage.

GeoTracker Help Desk assistance can be found on the ESI homepage
(www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/ust/electronic_submittal).

Note: The EDD requirement includes all analytical data, sampling location
information, monitoring well information (e.g. latitudes, longitudes, elevations, and
depth to water, well construction information, site maps, and boring logs).

b. The report must provide a description of the sampling activities, summary of the
analytical results, copy of the chain of custody, and a copy of the laboratory
analytical results.

c. In the monitoring report, the responsible agency must certify that the sampling for
PFAS was conducted according to the guidance documents in Section B.1.l and
B.1.m. If deviations from the guidance occurred, details on those deviations need
to be included in the report.

d. The responsible agency must acknowledge compliance with the guidance documents
listed in Section B.1.1 and B.1.m, and if not, provide rationale for any variations in the
report.

2. Monitoring Report for the Treatment System Sampling and Groundwater Sampling
Analysis Results

a. Analytical results from the treatment system sampling and groundwater sampling
event will be uploaded within 30 days of receiving laboratory analytical report into
GeoTracker’s ESI portal.

b. One monitoring report for the treatment system and groundwater monitoring shall be

submitted into GeoTracker's ESI portal no later than 60 days following the receipt of the
last analytical laboratory report.

PAGE 20 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020

Attachment 3

c. The monitoring report shall include text describing the sampling locations utilized and a

e.

3

figure of the facility with locations of the influent and effluent samples (include locations
of representative sampling points (e.g. sampling points for more than one influent or
effluent line)), groundwater monitoring wells, biosolids samples, brine line samples (if
applicable), and flow measurement devices (mentioned in Section B.1.d).

. The report shall include all reported data (analytical results, flow measurements,

groundwater monitoring well measurements (if applicable) in a tabular format.

The report shall include all laboratory analysis sheets, including quality
assurance/quality control information for which sample analyses were performed.

The report shall include a description of any variations in sampling from what was
provided to the Regional Water Board as part of Section C.3.b.

3. POTW Informational Questionnaire

a.

A link to an Adobe Acrobat-fillable questionnaire will be sent via email to the
responsible agency when the Order is issued. The format of the questionnaire and
instructions on how to complete the questionnaire is provided in Section D.

The gquestionnaire shall be completed by the responsible agency and submitted no
later than the submittal of the second quarter analytical results from the
treatment system sampling.

The responsible agency shall upload the completed questionnaire and attachments
requested in the questionnaire as separate ESI files in GeoTracker using the
responsible party's GeoTracker Global ID number (Attachment 2).

Instructions on how to log into GeoTracker is available at:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ust/electronic_submittal/index.html. Step by step
instructions are provided in the ES/ Guide for Responsible Parties under the
“Getting Started” section of this webpage.

GeoTracker Help Desk assistance can be found on the ESI homepage at:
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/ust/electronic_submittal.

The minimum information identified below is included in the questionnaire. The
questionnaire spreadsheet will be pre-populated with information since the
responsible agency has already submitted the same information to the State Water
Board (those items are shown in bracket [] form).

i. Waste Discharger Identification (WDID) Number [WDID].
ii. GeoTracker Global ID.

PAGE 21 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020

Attachment 3

vi.
vil.

viii.

Xi:
Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVil.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

Name of Responsible Agency [AGENCY NAME].

. Address of Responsible Agency.

Name of POTW [FACILITY NAME].

Address of POTW [FACILITY ADDRESS/PLACE ADDRESS].
Mailing address of POTW.

Name and title of POTW Point of Contact.

POTW Point of Contact phone number.

POTW Point of Contact email address.

Current average annual flow (mgd).

Average flow during June-Sept 2019 (mgd).

Types of wastewaters (e.g. industrial, domestic) received and estimated
percentages of total flow (mgd) based on calendar year 2019.

If wastewaters are received from industrial sources, provide a list of industry
types contributing flow to the POTW and estimated percentage of flow for
each type for the calendar year of 2019. Provide for each industrial type if
the flow is continuous, periodic, and/or non-routine.

Any storage basins (non-percolation) in use? If so, how many, any unlined,
how many with leak detections systems, and their frequency of use.

Plans to recycle water to Title 22 standards within the next 5 years.

Amount of sewage sludge and biosolids (by class type) produced in the
calendar year of 2019.

Disposal options used for sewage sludge and biosolids and estimate volume
percentage for the calendar year of 2019.

Landfill leachate accepted at the facility and if so, provide the name of
landfill, years accepted, and estimated volumes for the past 5 years.

Reverse osmosis concentrate/retentate produced at the facility and if so, the
volume produced in 2019 and annual average produced for the past 5
years.

PFAS sampling prior to this Order, PFAS sampling been performed in
compliance with an Order/Permit/Monitoring Reporting Program and
submitted to a Regional Water Quality Control Board, and PFAS sampling
been performed for internal/informal testing by others for research.

Section D. POTW Online Questionnaire and Instructions

1. This questionnaire will need to be filled out on Adobe Acrobat Software. This will ensure that
your responses are correctly recorded. Please install this software prior to starting the
guestionnaire.

PAGE 22 OF 39



ORDER WQ 2020-0015-DWQ July 9, 2020
Attachment 3

1. A free download of the Adobe Acrobat Reader software is available at the following
link from Adobe’s official website: https://acrobat.adobe.com/us/en/acrobat/pdf-
reader.html. You can also fill this form out with Adobe Acrobat Pro DC software.

2. You will receive this questionnaire as an attachment in an email from
PFAS@waterboards.ca.gov. Download and save the file locally to your computer and open
with Adobe Acrobat software. The guestionnaire will also be available in GeoTracker to your
GeoTracker Account using your GeoTracker Global ID.

3. Fill out the questionnaire using Adobe Acrobat. Please type your answers into the fillable
spaces as provided in the questionnaire and save it. You can print this file for your records.

4. Upload the completed questionnaire and any associated attachments (if necessary)
using the following instructions into GeoTracker.

1. Go to the GeoTracker ESI login page:
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/esi/login.asp

i. If you do not have an account, you can create one by clicking on the “Password
Request” link.

2. If you already have upload access to your facility record, please skip to step 7. If not,
please continue to step 3.

3. Once you are in your account, please go to the “Facility Management” section and
click “Request Additional Facilities”.

FACILITY MANAGEMENT

o Associated Facilities (17)

» Pending Facilities (0)

» Denied Facilities (0)

e Request Additional
Fachities o

« Domestic Well Portal

4. In the Global ID box, please type in the Global ID for the site and click the Search
button. You can also search by facility name or address, but Global ID tends to be
more reliable.

Global ID Facility Name Status

Streel Name City, County
C___JC___ 0 1T V) e

5. Select the box next to the Global ID for the site and click the “Request Checked
Facilities” button.

4 AGW080012673 -1

[Request Checked Facilities]

Once your request has been approved, you should be able to upload the document.
7. Go to the “Tools” section and click on “Upload EDD”".

PAGE 23 OF 39



£ )
<= o
= 7]
5 = & Helendale Community Services District
O -
DATE: October 15, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Cheryl Vermette, Program Coordinator

SUBJECT: Agenda item #7
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Parking Lot Lighting at the Community
Center

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests input from the Board regarding this matter.

STAFF REPORT:

Staff has been researching lighting options for the park grant and found options for solar parking
lot lights that may be of interest to the Board. Staff has not done extensive research on the pricing
but wanted to bring this option to the Board for discussion.

Previously, the District had contemplated a larger parking area north of the Community Center
that included lighting. However, with consideration of the grant the parking lot has been reduced
significantly and the lighting has been eliminated for this initial phase. While researching options
for the proposed park for the grant application, Staff discovered solar powered lighting that may
be an option for the Board to consider. The benefit of this option is the extensive electrical
backbone and transformer that would have to be installed. The light standards from one vendor
are standard shoebox style with solar panels on the top of the fixture that are not visible from the
ground. This may serve as a deterrent to theft.

Cost from one company was $2,285 for the light fixture with a 25’ pole. If the Board is interested
in this option Staff can continue to research other vendors.

FISCAL IMPACT: Undetermined at this time.
POSSIBLE MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS: Lighting layout



ey
3
=)
>
5
oo
[=
=
L
20
-



SERVI

Yy X

5 %

s a2 : . .

§ ~! 3 Helendale Community Services District

DATE: October 15, 2020

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Cheryl Vermette, Program Coordinator

SUBJECT: Agenda item #8
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Cost of Park Elements for Grant
Applications

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks input from the Board regarding this item.

STAFF REPORT:

Staff has researched pricing on the features selected for the Statewide Parks Grant Application.
Attached for the Board’s information are estimated costs for the various park elements selected
through the community park planning process. The Grant maximum award is $8,500,000,
however, there is some wisdom in not requesting the maximum amount. Currently, the estimated
total for all of the elements is $6,213,050.

Are there any elements that the Board would like to remove from the grant application?
Does the Board wish to make any modification to any of the fencing or pathways?
Does the Board wish to reduce the size of any of the elements?

The Board’s input at this time would be helpful prior to solidifying the grant application for
submittal by December 14, 2020.

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown
POSSIBLE MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS: Grant Costs



Attachment A: Grant Costs

Feature Cost
NEW Outdoor Amphitheater 250,000.00
Outdoor Basketball Courts / Roller Hockey 100,000.00
)l:!l;\;\;;:ommunity Garden boxes and Fence 100'x75' area (350 lineal ft. 13,050.00
NEW Jogging/Walking Paths Concrete 4,500 lineal ft @ $15/lineal ft 100,000.00
NEW Splashpad with shade cover and fencing 750,000.00
NEW Open Space/Demonstration Garden/Grass/Trees/Irrigation 300,000.00
NEW Picnic/Barbeque Areas/Gazebos 75,000.00
NEW ADA Playground features with poured in place surfacing 250,000.00
NEW Public Art 75,000.00
NEW Pump Track 350,000.00
NEW security safety lighting throughout the park (solar) 200,000.00
NEW Community Center with Senior Center 30,000 sq ft 3,500,000.00
NEW Mini golf Course 250,000.00
Fencing 2000 lineal feet @$35.00/lineal foot 87,500.00
Total Request 6,213,050.00




	101520Agenda
	SKM_C554e20101217340

